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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors of Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları TAŞ.;

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of fınancial position of Ereğli Demir ve
Çelik Fabrikaları TAŞ. (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together wiil be referred to as ihe Group”)
as st 31 December 2015 and the related consolidated statement of profıt or loss, consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of signiflcant accounting
policies and explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility For the Financial Statements

The Group management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
fınancial statements in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards and for such internal
controls as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to error
and/or fraud.

lndependent Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fınancial statements based on our
audit. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing as issued by the Capital
Markets Board of Turkey and Auditing Standards which are part of the Turkish Auditing Standards
issued by P0k Those standards require that ethical requirements are complied with and that the
independent audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from matedal misstatement.

lndependent audit involves performing independent audit procedures to obtain independent audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The independent audit
procedures selected depend on our professional judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the fınancial statements, whether due to error and/or fraud. in making those
risk assessments; the entitys internal control system is taken into consideration. Our purpose,
however, is not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control system, butto design
independent audit procedures that are appropriate for the circumstances in order to identify the
relation between the financial statements prepared by the Group and its internal controJ system. Our
independent audit includes atso evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Company’s management. as well as evaluating
the overali presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during our independent audit is sufflcient and
approphate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Amevbo,f,’i’ü£nU
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(Convenience translaion of a report and consolidated financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Opinion

in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairiy, in alI material
respects, the financial position of Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları TAŞ. and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015 and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in ancordance
with the Turkish Accounting Standards.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attenüon to the matter in Note 16 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. The court cases related to Capital Market Board’s (“CMB”) claim
that the Company had prepared its 31 December 2005 fınancial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards instead of Communiqu Serial Xi, No:25 on “Accounting
Standards in Capital Markets” without taking the permission of the CMB in prior years were concluded
against the Company at Council of State and such conclusions declared to the Company via
notifıcations sent in July 2012. On 1 August 2012, the Company applied to the Administrative Court to
remove the conflicting decisions of this court; but the Administrative Caurt decided to reject the
application by the notification made on 17 February 2014. However, lawsuitflled by the Privatization
Mministration (“PA”) of The Turkish Republic is at the stage of appeal at the Supreme Court and is
pending as of the date of our report.

Reports on Other Responsibilities Arising From Regulatory Requirements

1) Auditors’ report on Risk Management System and Committee in accordance with subparagraph
4, Article 378 of Turkish Commercial Code no. 6102 (“TCC”) is prepared to be submitted ta the
Board of Directors of the Company on 8 March 2016.

2) In accordance with subparagraph 4, Article 402 of the TCC, no signiflcant matter has come to
our attention that causes us to believe that the Company’s bookkeeping activities for the period
1 January —31 December 2015 and financial statements are not in campliance with the code
and provisions of the Company’s articles of association in relation to financial reporting.

3) In accordance with subparagraph 4, Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitted to
us the necessary explanations and provided required documents within the context of audit.

Güney Bağıg3ş4Şnetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi
A membrfI ii ofrhst a Young Global Limited

MetifltaroğıjSMMi1
EngagörnepttrjşK’

8 March 2016
Istanbul, Turkey

(2)

A membor ljrrn ol Er not Vounq Global Limilcd
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(Convenience Translalion into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLi DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.tŞ. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOF FINANCİAL POSITION AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”l unIts othcnvis2 indicated.)

The details of presentation cureney translation to TRY explained in Nole 2.1.

(Audiled) (Auditcd) (Audilcd) (Andited)
Currcnt Period Currnıt Period Previnus Period Previous Period

il December il Decemher 31 Decemher 38 Decemher
2015 2015 2014 2014

USD000 3RY000 t’SDOOO lRi’<H30ASSflS Note__________

Currenı Mscıs 2.751.401 7.999.975 3.178.814 7371353

Cash and Cash Equhulcnts 4 (.009 321 2.934.703 913.038 2.186.810

Financial Deriv4iw lnstrumcnts 5 85 236 44 415 15.795 36 628

Trğ Recchables 7 561.503 .632,629 757.626 1.756.860

Dıse hem ReIaıedParrğes 29 14.834 43.130 15,701 36,109

OıIıer Trade Receiı’uhes 7 536.670 /589.399 74/925 1.720.451

Other Recekables 8 712 2.069 8.639 3,800

Invenlories 9 1.113.595 3.237.890 1.405.144 3,258.389

PrcpaidExpenscs 80 18.143 52.754 (6,094 37.320

OlhercurrentAsscts 88 32.840 95.485 39.478 98.546

Nnn Current Asseis 3.657.490 10,634.515 3.692.406 8.562.328

Olber RecciabIcs 8 5.883 (5.069 80 237 23.738
Firuncial bBvsImcnts 27 79 27 63

Firmncrnl Deri’nm InsIrutcris 5 (4 639 42.564 24.013 55 684

lnesımcnt Protrtics Il 24 670 71.731 24 879 57.691

Properly, PlanI and Equipmcnl 1 2 3.520 075 10.231.969 3 535.882 8 (99.357

Irnangihle Asscb 13 69.596 202.357 72.689 (68 559

Prepaıd Eeres 10 15.112 43.939 10.931 25.348

DefcrredTaxAsscıs 27 8.888 23.807 13.748 31.881

‘Io’rAL ASSEİS 6.108.898 18.634.490 6.871220 (5.933.674

The aceompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



(Convenience Translation nto English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy [ssued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITİON AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (TRY Tlıousand”) unless otherwise indicated.)

(Audiled) (Audi(cd) (Auditcd) (Audilcd)
Currcnt Period Curreni Period Previous Period Previous Period

38 Decemher 31 Dccemher 31 December 31 Decembcr
2015 2015 2013 2014

LIABILITIES Notc USD000 TRY’000 USD000 TRY000

Current Liabilities 899.513 2.615.423 1.339.179 3.105.422

Financial Liabilitics 6 8.353 24.286 274.948 637,577

Short Tcrm Portionof LongTerm Fm. Liab. 6 360.179 1.047.256 615.918 1.128.252

Financial Derkttive Instrumenıs 5 6,705 19,495 2.629 6.096

Trade PabIes 7 200.235 582.203 180.076 417,579

Duc ta RelatedParties 29 9.159 26.630 7.903 18,329

Other TradePavables 7 191.076 555.573 172.172 399.250

Olher Payables 8 11.583 33.680 13.623 31.591

DefencdRewnue 19 32.115 93.377 32.972 76.45%

CurrentTaxLiabilitics 27 74.896 217,769 55.935 129.70%
Slıort Term Provisions 16 150.298 437.007 101.13% 234.528

Payables for Employce Renetits 15 41.168 119.700 42.917 99.520

Other Current Liabilities 18 13.981 40.650 19.023 44.113

Non Curreni Liabilities 1.197.164 3.480.875 8.085.836 2.517.945

Financial Liabililies 6 654.960 1.904.361 581.269 1.347.905

Financial Derğulive Inslruments 5 7.345 21.355 10.280 23.839

Provisions for Employee Benefiis 15 173.997 505.915 210.326 487.724

DefenedTı’cLiabilities 27 360.711 1.048.802 283.803 658.110

Olher Non Current Liabilities 18 ISI 442 15% 367

EQUITY 4.312.214 12.538.192 4.446.205 10310.307

ltıui1yAttributahIe lo Equity Iloldersofthe Pnrent 4.189.170 12.180.429 4.383.883 10.1)0334)3

ShareCapilal 20 1.818.371 3.500.000 1.818.371 3.500.000

Inilalion Adjuslment in Capilal 20 81.366 156.613 81.366 156,613
Trcasmy Simres (.) 20 (60.387) (116.232) (60.387) (116.232)
Share Issuc Premium 20 55.303 106.447 55.303 106 447

Other Comprchensh lncome/Expense Not ta he
Reclassiticdto ProfitI(Loss) (36.155) (%0,580) (14.682) (101.563)

!kvaluation Reserve af Taogible .lsseıs 12.623 27.215 10.405 21.15)
Acı nahal (lnss)/Gabıflıııds (48.778,) (107.795) 55.087) (125.714)

Other Comprelıensive Income/Expense ta be
Reçlassilled ta Prolitl (Loss) (31.483) 4.010.257 (4.007) 1.623.162

üısh Flaw Uedging Resenes (754) (2.192) 3.088 7.160
Fareipı Currenn’ Transkııüm Resenes M0.729) 4.012.449 .095) 1.616.002

Restrictcd Rcscn’es Assortcd from Profit 20 441.058 950.831 313.307 617.355
(Ltained Earnins 20 1.506.960 2.527.180 1.422.232 2616.106

NetProfıtforthePeriod 414.137 1.125.913 732.310 I.60I.4l5
Non-Controlling Interests 823.044 357.763 832.392 3117.004

TOTAL LIAI3ILFFIES AND EQUIfl 6.408.891 (8.634.490 6.878.220 85.933.674

The deiails of presentation currenLy translation to TRY explained in Note 2.1.

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of ihese consolidated financial statements.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued n Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unlcss oıherwıse indıcalod.)

(Andiltd) (AudiIedl

CASIİ flOWS [110M 0I’EltTING AÜIYITIES

Curısni Period Cumol I’nı4ad Pnvioaı PeHod I’rrviou, I’erlııd
1 .Iunuaıy 1 Jonuary 1 Jnnoaıy 1 J anası iş

3) December 2015 31 December 2015 3! Decenber 2(114 3’ Decrınbir 2014

TRY’II(Nl

The aceompanying notes form an integral port of these consolidated fınancial statements.

US’O(S) 1(50(81

586 966

206 511

25965

1 639

(364)

((6834)

1346

4 540

9871

3359

(5 381)

1.189

75 009

626

(3 365>
45077

31 734)
23 843)

(3 487)
12 273

8)9.9V
493 567

27763
(3 145>

(1 (74)
(141 371>

(13 502)
(1323)

(1.877)

(589)

1.178.326

1 136 167

561 442

70591

4456

(089)

(45 767)

3659

Il 343

26 836

1 980

9109

(Il 030)

3233

233 903

1703

(94221
122551

(06 276)

(54821)

(9 3)l)

33 360

2.259.969
1435 096

75480

(8350)

(3)92)

(384 346)

(36 709)

(3598)

(5(02)

<1602)

3337,446

891 904

99 663

25 127

4632

(482)

1.887

3860

6831

8485

3 883

9641

698

2 223
3179

84265

(24 535)
(27 145)

(12563)

(5588)

1.175.954

95 772

27750

(3447)

(402)

(82.919)

((8 190)

(1.381)

(2 960)

11.017)

1.289.16(1

8.965 578

436 622

54947

10130

((054)

4(27

8441

14938

88555

8492

21 082

527

4868

6951

(8 271

(53 675)

(59363)

(27 474)

((2 220)

2.586.732

453 975

00683

(7537)

(880)

(181 327)

(39 777)

(3019)

(6474)

(2224)

2 .8611. 852

ProOl bcforc sax and non.connrolliag inırreos
Adjoılooent, tü ntconcile net proni bcfnın lasso

net cnash provided lıy operuting asetkitlın:

Deprecialion and amonizaııon ctpennea

Provision for empioyec lenninaıion benefita
Provinion for 500iOflOy incensıve premlum

Gam on sale of propeny ptanl ard cquipment
Gam on sair of invenlment properoy

Losn on welle oli of properoy planı ard cquipmcnl

in cecase in provrsion for douhtta 1 rccewablen

lncreax in site al Iowarce for içer noncı

locreaje ın ih r iri paınr eni of ranooble aiLem

1 ocreaLe aL p0’, ision fr. un pnıd sracaı,ons

ıDccrcancsrncreane in prosisron for pendag olaSa, arıd Sawncils

lacrease In pcraI( pmv for ob:ıpıoıy empi : sbaııae of da bIcd pcşk
icreane la prc’.inıoa (‘OT rrmnonaror. fec of loog nı,,, connact
oCft180 la provisron for anam r,gI;l on mıning ac rviırcs

(Decrcascfir.crıase in prosi,ioo for eni’ Jefenne fu,ıd
lr.lCtni etpamscn

Inıe,e,t incorne froın bank depoı:mn

Inle,,t mncrnnc 0cm orerdar saka

U nreaüzai forcıFı CLETCT.Cy 1 prafa) onı of fınaacial IiabiL::c,
<nı faır valuc omaangen ofdençam,vc flnLcaL! irJa’1mflla

Net etin>’ pms UcU by nıpenoting activitlen befoıt ehtınges in

w,nr4slng capitai

Chargca in workijıg çapınI

alarmı income from overdur salon collecned

Lawouits paid

[malay paid for Ibm cmpiovmens nhonagr of dinabled prople

Corporalc tas pai3

Eriployer tennina(ion berefııa paiti

Siame righıo paid for mmning ociivi(iea

Unooed vacation paid

Seoiorisy ioccnsivr premniom paid

Net canlı pnıvided by ınpcntinn ınctivitiea

CASİI [LOVOS P310M INVESTINGACTIVITIES
Ubangen in fınancial ınvcılmcnsn

Canh provided by sair of racosmeni propeny

Cadt (oned) Oy porcha,e of> rvcslmcn t propıroy

Canlı osed in the porcha,r of naogh k annem
Canlı rac’J in bn parchnsr of mamarıg,blc santim
Cash rosndrd lay ıacn of mar,bIe onarım

Set malı ünal in Insesling atın tki

(ASIl fl.O5%S P310M SNANCISG ACVIVITIES
New barrossır

Rcpa>rneat of borrossın

Inicreal paid

ammrcıl rcccmçcj on bank depat:s

3:vidcrdm pamd

Divder.dm pLıd la nonm <r:,mıo:ro ınmerenIn

Nen casiı and in ity fınanıcinı ocn>viniea
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are cpressed as Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless oıherwise ındicaıcd.)

NOTE 1- GROUP’S ORGANIZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS

Erdemir Grubu (“Group”), is composed of Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları T.A.Ş. (“Erdemir” or “the
Company”). and its subsidiaries which it owns the majority of their shares or has a signifıcant influence
on their management structure.

The immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group are Ataer Holding A.Ş. and Ordu
Yardımlaşma Kurumu, respectivelv.

Ordu Yardımlaşma Kurumu (OYAK/Armed Forces Pension Fund) was incorporated on l March 1961
under the Act No. 205 asa private entity under its own law subject to Tıırkish civil and commercial codes
and autonomous in fınancial and administrative matters. OYAK, being an “aid and retirement fund” for
Turkish Armed Forces’ members, provides various services and beneflts within the framework of social
security concept anticipated by Turkish Constitution. OYAK has nearly sixty direct and indirect
subsidiaries in industry, fınance and service sectors. The detailed information about OYAK can be found
on its omcial website (www.oyak.com.tr).

The Company was incorporated in Turkey as ajoint stock company in 1960. The principal activities of
the Company are production of iron and steel rolled products, alloyed and non-alloyed iron, steel and pig
iron castings, cast and pressed products, coke and their by-products.

The Company’s shares have been traded in Istanbul Stock Exchange since the establishment of the
Istanbul Stock Exchange (year 1986).

The main operations of the companies included in the consolidation and the share percentage of the
Group for these companies are as follows:

Country of 2015 2013
Name of ıhe Companv OraIion Operation Share 9h Share %
Iskenderun Demir ve Çelik AŞ. rurkey Integraled Sıeel Production 95.07 95.07
Erdemir Madencilik San, ve hc. AŞ. Turkey Iron Ore and Pellet 90.00 90.00
Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San, ve rıc. A.Ş. Turkey Sıeel Senice Cenıer 100 100
Erdemir Mühendilik Yün, ve Dan. FIiı A.Ş. Turkey Management and Consultancy 100 100
Erdemir Romania S.11k. Romania Silicon Steel Production 100 100
Erdemir Mm racinc Private Limited Singapore Trading 100 100

The registered address of the Company is Barbaros Mahallesi Ardıç Sokak No:6 Ataşehir / İstanbul.
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(Convenienee Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as TurLisb Lira (‘TRY Thound”) unless otherwise indimtL’d.)

NOTE 1- GROUP’S ORGANIZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS (cont’d)

Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fab.T.AŞ.
Iskenderun Demir ve Çelik AŞ.
Erdemir Madencilik San, ve Tie. AŞ.
Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San, ve Tie. A.Ş.
Erenco Erdemir MÜh. Yön, ve Dan. Hiz. A.Ş.
Erdemir Romania S.R.L.
Erdemir Asia Pacilic Private Limited

_________________ _________________ ____________________

Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fab.T.A.Ş.
Iskenderun Demir ve Çelik AŞ.
Erdemir Madencilik San, ve Tie. A.Ş.
Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San, ve Tie. AŞ.
Erenco Erdemir MÜh. Yön, ve Dan. 1hz. A.Ş.
Erdemir Romania S.R.L.
Erdemir Ağa Pacilic Private Limited

___________________ ___________________ ______________________

The Company and alI its subsidiaries in Turkey maintain their legal books of account and prepare their
statutorv fınancial statements (“Statutory Financial Statemenıs”) in accordance with accounting principles
issued by the Turkish Commercial Code C’TCC’) and tax legislation.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements and disclosures have been prepared in accordance with the
communiqu numbered 11-14.1 “CommuniquĞ on the Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital
Markets” (“the Communiqufl announced by the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) (hereinafter wihl be
referred to as “the CMB Accounting Standards”) on 13 June 2013 which is published on Offlcial Cazette
numbered 28676.

The flnancial statements are prepared on cost basis. except the derivative financial instruments and
tangible assets used for silicon steei and iron ore carried on fair value.

in accordance with article 5111 of the CMB Reporting Standards. companies should apply Turkish
Accounting Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards and its interpretations issued by the Public
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority of Turkey (“POA”).

The number of the personnel employed by the Group as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014
are as foliows:

PaU llourly Paid MontIy 31 December 2015
Personnel Personnel Personnel

4.530 1.797 6.327
3.446 1.816 5.262

128 127 255
215 87 302

- 240 240
218 50 268

- 5 5
8.537 4.122 12.659

Paid 1 Inurly Paid Montly 31 December 2014
Personnel Personnel Personnel

4.593 1.861 6.454
3.795 1.818 5.613

137 139 276
61 73 134

- 114 114
227 51 278

- 3 3
8.813 4.059 2.872

NOTE 2 — BASİS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE
STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of Presentation

CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
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(Convenience Translation into English ofConsolidated Financial Sıatements Originally Issued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDİARIES

NOTES TÜ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(Amounıs are cxpresscd as Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand’) unlcss othcrwise indcaıcd.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

Functional and Repodina Currencv

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries’ İskenderun Demir ve Çelik A.Ş. Hsdemir”
and Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San. ve Tic. A.Ş “Ersem” are VS Dollars; Erdemir Madencilik San, ve
Tie. A.Ş. “Ermaden” and Erdemir Mühendislik Yönetim ve Danışmanlık Hizmetleri A.Ş. “Erenco” areTRY.

Funcılonal currencyJör the subskliary abroad

The functional currency of the foreign sııbsidiaries Erdemir Asia Pacific Private Limited “EAPPL” is US
Dollars; Erdemir Romania S.R.L is EUR.

Presentation currency translation

Presentation currency of the consohidated financial statements is TRY. According to IAS 21 (“The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”) fınancial statemenıs. that are prepared in USD Dollars for the
Company, İsdemir, Ersem and EAPPL; in Euro for Erdemir Romania, have been translated in TRY as the
following method:

a) The assets and hiabilities on financial position as of3l December 2015 are translated from USD
Dollars into TRY using the Central Bank of Turkeys exchange rate which is TRY 2.9076U5 S 1
and TRY 3,1776EUR 1 on the balance sheet date (31 December 2014: TRY 2,3189= VS $ 1,
TRY 2,8207=EUR 1).

b) For the twelve months period ended 31 December 2015, income statements are translated from
the average TRY 2,7187 = US $ 1 and TRY 3,0l81=EUR 1 rates of 2015 ianuary - December
period (31 December 2014: TRY 2,1868 = US $ 1 TRY 2,9059 1 EUR).

c) Exchange diWerences are shown in other comprehensive income as of foreign currency tmnslation
reserve.

d) The differences between presentation of statutory and historical fıgures are recognised as translation
differences under equity. Ali capital. capiml measures and other measures are represneted with their
statutory figures, other equity accounts are represented with İheir historic cost fıgures in the
accompanying fınancial statements.

USD amounts presented in the fınancial statements

The tigures in USD amoıınts presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
comprising the statements of fınancial position as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income, and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2015 represent the consolidated fınancial statements within the
frame of functional currency change that the Company has made. which is effective as of JuIy 1, 2013,
prepared in accordance with the TAS 21- Effects ofChanges in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Goma concern

The Groııp prepared its consolidated fınancial statements in aceordance with the going concern
assumption.
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(Convenience Translation tito English ofConsolidated Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(Amounıs are cxprcssed as Turk,sh Lira (‘TRY Thousand’) unless otherwisc indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

Ayproval of the consolidated financial staıements

The consolidated financial statements have been approved and authorized to be published on 8 March
2016 by the Board of Directors. The General Assembiy has the authority to revise the Fınancial
statements.

2.2 Comparative Information and Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statemenis with Prior
Periods

The Group’s consohidated fınancial statements are presented in comparison with the previous period in
order to allow for the determination of the financial position and performance trends. The comparative
information is reclassified when necessary in order to be aligned with the current period consolidated
Fınancial statements.

2.3 Consolidation Principles

The consolidated financial sıatements include the accounts of the parent company, Ereğli Demir ve Çelik
Fabrikaları T.A.Ş.. and its Subsidiaries on the basis set out in sections below. The fınancial statements of
the companies included in the consohidation have been prepared as of the date of the consolidated
fınancial statements and are based on the statutory records with adjustments and reciassifications for the
purpose of presentation in conformity TAS/TFRS promulgated by the POA as set out in the communiquĞ
numbered 11-14.1, and Group accounting and disclosure policies.

Subsidiaries are the Companies controhled by Erdemir when it is exposed. or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the control 15 transferred to the Group and are no
longer consolidated from the date that the controt ceases.

The statement of fınancial position and statements profıt or loss of the Subsidiaries are consolidated ona
line-by-line basis and the carrying value of the investment held by Erdemir and its Subsidiaries 15
eliminated against the related shareholders’ equity. lntercompany transactions and balances between
Erdemir and its Subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation. The cost of. and the dividends arising from,
shares heid by Erdemir in ils Subsidiaries are eliminated from shareholders’ equity and income for the
year, respectively.

The table below sets out al! Subsidiaries included in the scope of consohdation and discloses their direct and
indirect ownership, which are identical to their economic interests, as of 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014 (%) and their functional currencies:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Functional Ownership Effective Functional Ownership EffecLive
Currencv Interest Shareholding Currency Interest Shareholding

İsdemir US Dollars 95.07 95.07 US Dollars 95,07 95.07
Ersem US Dolbrs 100.00 100.00 US Dollars 100.00 100.00
Ermaden Turkish Lira 90.00 90.00 Turkish Lira 90.00 90.00
Erdemir Mühendislik Turkish Lira 100.00 100.00 Turkish Lira 100,00 00.00
Erdemir Romania S.R.L. Euro 100.00 100.00 Euro 100.00 100.00
Erdemir Mia Pasific US Dollars 100,00 100.00 US Dollars 100.00 100,00
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(Convenience Translation into EngLish ofConsolidated Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOL1DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are exprcsed as Turkish Un (TRY Thousand’) unless atlıerwise ındicaced.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (eont’d)

2.4 Comparative Information and Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements wiih Prior
Periods

The Group’s consolidated fınancial statements are presented in accordance with the communiqud
numbered 11-14,1 “Communiqu on the Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets” (“the
CommuniquĞ”) announced by the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”). The Group’s consolidated fınancial
staıements are prepared in comparison wiih the previous period in order to allow for the determination of
the financial position and performance trends in accordance with a new illustrative financial statements
and guidance that has been effective from the interim periods ended after 30 June 2013.

Reciassifıcations of financial position are as follows:

(Prevbusly
Reported) (Restated) (Difference)

Aecount 31 December 2014 31 December 2014 31 December 2014

Short Term Other Payables 7.389 31.591 24.202

Short Term Payables for Employee Benefıts 123.722 99.520 (24.202)

TradePayabIes2 417.255 417.579 324

Other Current Liabilities (2)
44.437 44.113 (324)

(1) TRY 24.202 thousand employee’s income tax payables that was reported under “Payables for
Employee Benefıts”, is reciassifed under “Shon Term Other Payables” in consolidated financial
statemenıs as of3l December 2014.

(2) TRY 324 thousand expense accruals that ‘yas reported under “Other Current Liabilities”, is reciassifed
under “Trade PayabIe’ in consolidated fınancial statements as of3 1 December 2014.

Reciassifıcations of income statement are as foilows:

(Previously
Reported) (Restated) (Dillerence)

1 Janunıy - 1 Janunıy - 1 Januaıy -
31 December 31 December 31 DecemberAccount

2014 2014 2014

General Administrative Expenses (-) (223.509) (232.012) (8.503)

Other Operating Expenses (142.342) (133.839) 8.503

Financial Income 88.888 229.505 140.617

Financial Expense (-) (217.729) (358.346) (140.617)

(1) Provision for doubtful receivables TRY 8.503 thousand which were reported under “Other Operating
Expenses (-)“ was reclassifled to “General Administrative Expenses (-)“ on the consolidated statement of
income for the year ended 31 December 2014.

(2) Foreign exchange loss (net) TRY 22.993 thousand oııt of TRY 140.617 thousand which were reported
under “Financial Expense (-)“ was reclassilied to foreign exchange gam from deferred tax base under
“Financial Income” for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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(Convenience Translation into English ofconsolidated Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER2OI5

(Amounts ne expressed as Turkish Lira Ç’TRY Thousand”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.5 Signifıeant Judgmcnts and Estimutes of the Group on Application of Accounting PoIicies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions prospectively while preparing its consolidated fınancial
statements. These accounting estimates are rareiy identical to the actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may cause signiflcant adjustments to the carrying values of assets and hiabilities in the
following reporting periods m-e listed below:

2.5.1 Useful lives of property, plant and eqnipment and intangible assets

The Group calculates depreciation for the flxed assets by laking into account their production amounts on
the basis of cash flow unit set by independent expert valuation Firm and usefuh lives that are stated in Note
2.8.3 and 2.8.4 (Note 12. Note 13).

2.5.2 Deferred tax

The Group recognizes deferred tax on the temporary timing differences between the carrving amounts of
assets and Iiabilities in the financial statements prepared in accordance with TFRS and statutory financial
statements which is used in the computation of taxable profit. The related differences are generaliy due to
the timing difference of the tax base of some income and expense items between statutory and TFRS
fınancial statements. The Group has deferred tax assets resulting from tax hess carry-forwards and
deductible temporary difi’erences, which could reduce taxable income in the future periods. Ali or partial
amounts of the realizable deferred tax assets are estimated in current circumstances. The main factors
which are considered include future earnings potential; cumulative flscal losses in recent years; history of
Ioss carry-forwards and other tax assets expiring, the carry-forward period associated with the deferred
tax assets, future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences that would, if necessary, be
implemented, and the nature of the income that can be used to realize the deferred tax asset (Note 27).

2.5.3 Fair values of derivative (inancial instruments

The Group values its derivative financial instruments by using the foreign exchange and interest mte
estimations and based on the valuation estimates of the market values as of the balance sheet date (Note 5).

2.5.4 Provision for doubtful receivables

Allowance for doubtful receivables reflect the future hoss that the Group anticipates to incur from the
trade receivables as of the balance sheet date which is subject to collection risk considering the current
economic conditions. During the impairment test for the receivables, the debtors are assessed with their
prior year performances, their credit risk in the current market, their performance after the reporting date
up to the issuing date of the financial statements; and also the renegotiation conditions with these debtors
are considered. As of reporting date the provision for doubtful receivables 15 presented in Note 7 and Note
8.

2.5.5 Provision for inventories

During the assessment of the provision for inventory the fohlowing are considered; anahyzing the
inventories phvsically and historicaliy. considering the employment and usefulness of the inventories
respecting to the technical personnel view. Sales prices hsted and related dala by sales prices of realized
sales afler balance sheet date, average discount rates giyen for sale and expected cost incurred to sel! are
used 10 determine the net reahizable value of the inventories. As a result of this, the provision for
inventories withı the net reahizable values below the costs and the show moving inventories are presented
in Note 9.
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(Convenience Translation into English ofConsolidated Financial Statements Originally lssued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMiR VE ÇELiK FABRİKALARI T.tŞ. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are cxprcsscd as TurLish Lira (TR Tlıousand’) unlcss othaıse indicatcd

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.5 Signifıcant Judgments and Estimatcs of the Group on Application of Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.5.6 Provisions for employee bendfits

Actuarial Assumptions about discount rates, infiation rates, future salary increases and employee turnover
rates are made to calculate Croup’s provision for employee beneflts. The details related with the defined
benefıt plans are stated in Note 15.

2.5.7 Provision for Iawsuits

Provision for lawsuits is evaluated by the Group based on opinions of Group Legal Counsel and legal
consultants. The Group determines the amount of provisions based on best estimates. As of Reporting
date, provision for lawsuits k stated in Note 16.

2.5.8 Provision for termination fee of long term contract

The Group has initiated termination process of long-term service agreement, which is signed on Il
August 2008 to transport of overseas iron ore supplies with capesize vessels for 2008-2022 period, in the
last quarter of 2015. The Group Management has concluded that there is a constructive obligation
because of the Management’s decision and supplier’s intention towards termination process related to the
contract as of 31 December 2015 and possibility of cash outtlow is more likely than not. The parties
reached a certain agreement on 24 February 2016 on termination of the aforementioned agreement with
USD 75.000 thousand termination fee and siıing of a new freight contract linked with market prices.
Therefore. it is considered that subsequent agreement on termination cost. is an adjusting event after the
balance sheet date since it lets the measurability of constructive obligation in a trustable manner. As a
result. USD 75.000 thousand provision for termination fee of long term contract is recognized as of 31
December 2015 (Note 16 and 24).

2.5.9 lmpairments on Assets

The Group, perforrns impairment tests for assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization in case
of being not possible to prevent recovery of the assets at each reporting period. Assets are grouped at the
Iowest Ievels which there are separateiy identifiable cash flows for evaluation of impairment (cash
generating ıınits). As a result of the impairment works performs by the Group management, as of the
reporting date any impairment except calculated provision on non-fınancial assets has not been estimated
(Note 12).

2.6 Offsetting

Financial assets and Iiabilities are offset and the net amounts are reported with their net values in the
balance sheet where either there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts or there is
an intention to settle on a net basis. or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

13
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EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are cxprcssed as Turkish Lira ÇTRY Thousand”) unlcss otherwisc indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2015 are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new
and amended TFRS and TFRIC interpretations effective as of 1 January 2015. The effects of these
standards and interpretations on the Group’s fınancial position and performance have been disclosed in
the related paragraphs.

The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at 1 January 2015 are as
foilows:

TAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendment)

TAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defıned benefıt pians. The amendments clarib that, if the amount of the
contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognize
such contributions asa reduction in the service cost in the period in which the service is rendered.
instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service. The amendment is to be applied
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,2014.

Annual Improvements to TASfTFRSs

in September 2014, POA issued the below amendments to the standards in relation to “Annual
improvements - 2010—2012 Cycle” and “Annual Improvements -20! 1—2013 Cycle.

Annual Improvements - 2010—2012 Cycie

• TFRS 2 Share-based Payment

Definitions relating to performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions are
clarifıed. The amendment is effective prospectively.

• TFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment clarifıes that al! contingent consideration arrangements classifıed as Iiabiiities
(or assets) arising from a business combination should be subsequently measured at fair value
through profıt or loss whether or not they fal! within the scope of IAS 39 (or IFRS 9, as
applicabie). The amendment is effective for business combinations prospectively.

• TFRS 8 Operating Segments

The changes are as follows: i) An entity must disclose the judgemenıs made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria in IFRS 8, including a brief description of operating segments
that have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g.. sales and gross margins) used to
assess whether the segments are similar’. ii) The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets
is oniy required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision
maker. The amendment wili not have an impact on the financial posirion or performance of the
Group.

• TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and TAS 38 Intangible Assets

The amendment to TAS 16.35(a) and TAS 38.80(a) clarifıes that revaluation can be performed.
as foilows:i) Adjust the gross carrying amount of the asset to market value or ii) determine the
market value of the carrying amount and adjust the gross carying amount proportionateiy 50 that
the resulting carrying amount equals the market value. The amendment wil! not have an irnpact
on the tinancial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (eont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Annual Improvemcnts - 2010—2012 Cycle (cont’d)

TAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

The amendment ciarifles that a management entity — an entity that provides key managemeni
personnel services — is a related party subject to the related party disclosures. . in addition, an entity
that uses a management entity is required to disclose the expenses incurred for management services.
The amendment svill not have an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements —2011—2013 Cycle

• TFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment clarifıes thai: i) Joint arrangements are outside the scope of TFRS 3, not just
joint ventures ii) The scope exception appiies oniy to the accounting in the financial stateınents of
the joint arrangement itself. The amendment wilI not have an impact on the fınancial position or
performance of the Group.

• TERS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The portfolio exception in TFRS 13 can be applied to fınancial assets, fınancial Iiabihities and
other contracis within the seope of IAS 39 (or IFRS 9, as applicable). The amendment wihi not
have an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Group.

• TAS 40 Investment Property

The amendment ciarifles the interrelationship of TFRS 3 and TAS 40 in determining whether the
transaction k the purchase of an asset or business combination. The amendment wihi not have an
impact on the financial position or performance of the Croup.

Slandards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing slandards İhat are issued but not yet eWective up to
the date of issuance of the consohidated fınancial statements are as foliows. The Group wili make the
necessarv changes if not indicated otherwise. which wilI be affecting the consolidated financial
statemenıs and disclosures. when the new standards and interpretations become effective.

• TERS 9 Financial lnstruments — Classiflcation and measurement

As amended in December 2012 and February 2015, the new standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. Phase 3 of this new TERS
introduces new requirements for classifying and measuring fınancial instruments. The amendments
made to TFRS 9 vihI mainly affect the ciassifıcation and measurement of fınancial assets and
measurement of fair value option (FVO) Iiabilities and requires that the change in fair value of a FVO
fınancial liability attributable to credit risk is presented under other comprehensive income. The
Group wiil quanti the effect in conjunction with the oİher phases. when the Ünal standard including
alI piıases is adoptedby POA.
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NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Annual Improvements — 2011—2013 Cycie (cont’d)

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (cont’d)

TFRS Il Acquisition ofan interest in a Joint Operation (Amendment)

TFRS 11 is amended to provide guidance on the accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations in which the activity constitutes a business. This amendment requires the acquirer of
an interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a business, as defined in TFRS 3
Business Combinations, to appty alI of the principtes on business combinations accourning in
TERS 3 and other TFRSs except for those principles that conflict with the guidance in this TFRS.
in addition. the acquirer shall disclose the information required by TFRS 3 and other TFRSS for
business combinations. These amendments are to be applied prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or afler January 1, 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments wili not
have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

• TAS 16 and TAS 38 - Clarifıcation of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(Amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38)

The amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38, have prohibited the use of revenue-based depreciation
for property, plant and equipment and significantly limiting the use of revenue-based
amortisation for intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or afler January 1.2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments wili not
have an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Croup.

• TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and TAS 41 Agriculture (Amendment) — Bearer Plants

TAS 16 is amended to provide guidance that bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber trees and
oil palms should be accounted for in the same way as property, plant and equipment in TAS 16.
Once a bearer plant is mature, apart from bearing produce, its biological transformation is no
longer signiflcant in generating future economic benefıts. The oniy signiflcant future economic
beneflts it generates come from the agricultural produce that it creates. Because their operation is
similar to that of manufacturing, either the cost model or revaluation model should be applied.
The produce growing on bearer plants wili remain within the scope of TAS 41, measured at fair
value less costs to seli. Entities are required to apply the amendments for annual periods
beinning on or after ianuary 1. 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not
applicabie for the Group and wilI not have an impact on the financial position or performance of
the Groııp.

• IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27)

in April 2015, Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (POA) of Turkey
issued an amendment to TAS 27 to restore the option to use the equity method to account for
investments in subsidiaries and associates in an entity’s separate fınanciai statements. Therefore,
an entity must account for these investments either:

o At cost
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NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Annual Improvements — 2011—2013 Cycle (cont’d)

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (cont’d):

IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27)

o in aceordance with IFRS 9 or
o Using the equity method deflned in TAS 28

The entity must apply the same accounting for each category of investments. The amendment k not
applicable for the Group and wiil not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

• TERS 10 and TAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture (Amendments)

in February 2015, amendments issued to TFRS 10 and TAS 28, to address the acknowledged
inconsistency between the requirements in TERS 10 and TAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is contributed to an associate or a joint venture, lo clarify that an
investor recognizes a fuli gam or loss on the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a
business. as defined in TERS 3. between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The gam
or Ioss resulting from the re-measurement at fair value of an investment retained in a former
subsidiary should be recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in that former
subsidiary. An entity shall apply those amendments prospectively to transactions occurring in
annual periods begmnning on or after January 1. 2016. Earlier appiication is permitted. The Group
is in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on fınancial posilion or performance of
the Group.

• TERS 10, TERS 12 and TAS 28: investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

in February 2015, amendments issued to TERS 10, TERS 12 and TAS 28, to address the issues
that have arisen in applying the investment entities exception under TERS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements. The amendments are applicable for annııal periods beginning on or afler
January 1.2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment k not applicable for the Group
and wiil not have an impact on the flnancial position or performance of the Group.

• TAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to TAS 1)

in Eebruary 2015, amendments issued to TAS 1. Those amendments include narrow-focus
improvements in the following Fıve areas: Materialitv, Disaggregation and subtotals. Notes
structure. Disclosure of accounting poiicies. Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income (OCI) arising from equity accounted investments. The amendments are applicable for
annual periods beginning on or afler ianuary 1, 2016. Earlier applicaıion is permitted. These
amendments are not expected have signifıcant impact on the notes to the consolidated fınancial
statements of the Group.
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NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Annual Improvements to TFRSS - 2012-2014 Cycle

in February 2015, POA jssued, Annual lmprovements to TFRSS 2012-2014 Cycle. The document sets out
five amendments to four standards, excluding those standards that are consequentiahly amended, and the
related Basis for Conclusions. The standards affected and the subjects of the amendments are:

• IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Heid for Sale and Discontinued Operations — clarifies that changes in
metlıods of disposal (through sale or distribution to owners) would not be considered a new plan
of disposal, rather it k a continuation of the original plan

• IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures — elarifles that 1) the assessment ofservicing
contracts that includes a fee for the continuing involvement of [ınancial assets in aceordance with
IFRS 7; ii) the offsettingdisclosure requirements do not apply 10 condensed interim financial
statements, unless such disclosures provide a signifıcant update to the information reported in the
most recent annual report

• hAS 19 Employee Beneflts — clarifles that market depth of high quality corporate bonds is
assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country
where the obligation is located

• tAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting —ciarifles that the required interim disciosures must either be
in the interim fınancial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim
fınancial statements and wherever they are included within the interim fınancial report

The new standards. amendments and interoretations that are issued bv the International Accountinıg
Standards Board (IASB) but not issued by Pubiic Oversipht Authoritv (P0M

The following standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are issued by the
IASB but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements. However, these
standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are not yet adapted/issued by the
POA, thus they do not constitute part of TFRS. The Croup wilil make the necessary changes to its
consolidated financiat statements after the new standards and interpretations are issued and become
effective under TFRS.

Annual Improvements — 2010—2012 Cycle

• IFRS l3 Fair Value Measurement

As clarifıed in the Bask for Conclusions shorı-term receivables and payables with no stated
interest rates can be held at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The
amendment is effective immediateiy.

Annual Improvements — 2011—2013 Cycle

• IFRS 15 Revenue [rom Contracts with Customers

In Mav 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The new flve
step model in the standard provides the recognition and measuremem requirements of revenue.
The standard applies to revenue frorn contracis with customers and provides a model for the sale
ofsome non-financial assets that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities (e.g.. the sale
of property, plant and equipment or intangibles). IFRS 15 original effective date was January 1,
2017. However, in September 2015, IASB decided to defer the effective date to reporting periods
beginning on or after Ianuary 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. Entities wihi transition to
the new standard following either a fulI retrospective approach or a modifıed retrospective
approach.

18



(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally lssued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLi DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expresscd as TurLish Lira (TRY Thousand’) unlcss ohcrwıse indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (eont’d)

Annual lmprovements —2011—2013 Cycle (cont’d)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (cont’d)

The modifıed retrospective approach would allow the standard to be applied beginning with the
current period, with no restatement of the comparative periods, but additional disclosures are
required. The Group is in the process ofassessing the impact of the standard on financial position
or performance of the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments - Final standard (2014)

in July 2014 the IASB published the final version of IFRS 9 Financial lnstrumerns. The fınal
version of IFRS 9 brings together the ciassification and measurement. impairment and hedge
accounting phases of the IASBs project to replace IAS 39 Financiai lnstruments: Recognition
and Measurement. IFRS 9 is built on a logical, single ciassifıcation and measurement approach
for fınancial assets that reflects the business model in which they are managed and their caslı
flow characteristics. Built upon this is a forward-iooking expected credit loss model that wili
result in more timely recognition of ban losses and is a single model that is appiicable to alI
financial instruments subject to impairmeni accounting. in addition, IFRS 9 addresses the so
called ‘own credit’ issue, whereby banks and others book gains through profıt or loss as a result
of the value of their own debt falling due to a decrease in credit worthiness when they have
elected to measure that debt at fair value. The Standard also includes an improved hedge
accounting model to better link the economics of risk management with its accounting treatment.
IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. However, the
Standard is available for early application. In addition, the own credit changes can be early
applied in isolation without otherwise changing the accounting for fınancial instruments. The
Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or
performance of the Groııp.

IFRS 16 Leases

ln Januarv 2016, the IASB has pubiished a new standard. IFRS 16 ‘Leases. The new standard
brings most leases on-balance sheet for lessees under a single model, eliminating the distinction
between operaıing and fınance leases. Lessor accounting however remains largeiy unehanged and
the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17
Leases and related interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after Janııary 1,
2019. with earlier adoption permitted iÇ IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts wiih Customers’ has
also been applied. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on
tiııancial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Annual Improvements — 2011—2013 Cycle (cont’d)

IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendments)

in January 2016. the IASB issued amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendments ciari1’
how to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value. The
amendments clarify the requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses,
to address diversity in practice. These amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual
periods beginning on or after ianuaıy 1, 2017 with earlier application permitted. However, on
initial application of the amendment, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative
period may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other
components of equity. If the Group applies this relief, it shail disclose that fact. The Group is in
the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on fınancial position or performance of
the Group.

tAS? Statemem of Cash Flows (Amendments)

in January 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows. The
amendments are intended to clarify IAS 7 to improve information provided to users of fınancial
statements about an entity’s financing activities. The improvements to disclosures require
companies to provide information about changes in their fınancing Iiabilities. These amendments
are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2017 with earlier appiication
permitted. When the Company/Group first applies those amendments, it is not required to
provide comparative information for preceding periods. The Group is in the process of assessing
the impact of the amendments on financial position or performance of the Group.

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Signifıcant Accountiug Policies

Voluation principles and accounting policies used in the preparation of the consolidated fınancial
statements are as foilows:

2.8.1 Rcvenue recognition

Revenue is measured nt dıe fair value of the received or receivable amount. The estimated customer
returns. rebates. and other similar allowances are deducıed from this amount.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Signifıcant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.8.1 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when ali the foilowing conditions are satisfled:

• The Groop transfers the signifıcarn risks and benefıts of the ownership of the goods to the buyer;
• The Group retains neither a continuing manageriai involvement usualiy associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold:
• The amount of revenue is measured reliabiy;
• it 15 probable that the economic beneflts associated with the transaction wihh flow to the Group;

and
• The costs incurred or to be incurred due to the transaction are measured rehiabiy.

Dividend and interest revenue

interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which 15 the rate thaı exactiy discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected iife of the financial asset to that asset’s net canying amount. Group’s interest income from
time deposits is recoıznized in financial income. Group’s interest incorne from sales with maturities is
recognized in other operating income.

Rental income

Rentah income from investment properties 15 recognized on a straight-hine basis over the term of the
relevant lease and recognised under other operating income.

2.8.2 Inyentories

inventories are vaiued at the iower of cost or net reahizabie vaiue. The costs. inchuding an appropriate
portion of flxed and variable overhead expenses, are assigned to inventories heid by the method most
appropriate to the particular class of inventory, with the majority vahued by using the monthiy weighted
average method. Net reahizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinaiy course of business, iess
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.8.3 Property, piant and equipment

Properw. plant and equipment purchased before 30 June 2013 are disclosed in the financial statements at
their indexed lıistorical cost for infiation e[fects as at 30 June 2013. on the other hand the purchases made
in 30 June 2013 and in later periods are presented at their historicah cost. iess depreciation and impairment
Ioss. Except for land and construction in progress, other tangible asseis are depreciated according to
straight-hine basis or units of production method basis using the expected useful lives and prodLıction
amounts of the assets.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applicd / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.8.3 Property, plant and equipmcnt (cont’d)

The Group’s tangible fixed assets operating in the production of iron ore and high silicon fiat steel are
stated in the balance sheet at their fair value amounts at the date of acquisition. Any increase arising from
the revaluation of the existing assets is recorded under the revaluation reserve, in the shareholders’ equity.
A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of assets 15 charged to the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it exceeds the balance in the revaluation reserve that is related to the previous
revaluation.

The carrying values of property. plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying vahue may not be recoverable. lfany such indication exists
and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating
units are written down to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment is the greater of net selling price and value in use.

in assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vaiues using
a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate Iargely independent cash infiows, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset behongs. Impairment losses are
recognized in the consohidated income statement.

The rates that are used to depreciate the fixed asseis are as follows:

Rates
Buildinas 2-16%
Land improvements 2-33% aM units of production level
Machinery and equipment 3-50% and units of production level
Vehicles 5-25% and units of production level
Furniture and fixtures 5-33%
Other tangible fixed assets 5-25%

Expenses after the capitalization are added to the cost of rehated asset and reflected in financial statements
as a separate asset if they shall mostiy provide an economic benefit and their cost is measured in a
trustable manner. Tangible assets are reviewed for impairment if tlıere are conditions showing that the
securities are more than amount recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest eve! which is cash
generating unit in order to determine impairment. Carrying amount of a tangible asset and recoverable
value is the one which is higher than the net sales price following the deduction of commensurable value
for the sale of the asset. Usefuh life of assets are reviewed as of date of balance sheet and adjusted. if
required.

Maintenance and repair expenses are recorded as expense to ilie comprehensive income statement of the
rehated period. The Company omits the carrying values of the changed pieces occurred with respect to
renovations from the balance sheet without considering whether they are subject 10 depreciation in an
independent manner from other sections. Main renovations are sLıbject to deprecation based on the
shortest ofresidual life of the related tangible asset or useful life of the renovation itseif.

Advances paid related to purchasing of tangible assets are monitored in prepaid expenses under fixed
assets until the related asset is capitahized or recognized under on-going investments.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Vaiuation Principles Applied / Signifıcant Accounting Policics (cont’d)

2.8.4 Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased before 30 June 2013 are recognized at tlıeir acquisition cost indexed for
infiation effects as at 30 June 2013, on the other hand the purchases made in and after 30 June 2013 are
recognized at acquisition cost Iess any amortization and impairment loss. Intangible assets are amortized
principally on a straight-Iine basis over their estimated useful lives and production amounts. The
estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period,
and any changes in the estimate are accounted for on a prospective basis.

The amortization rates of the intangible assets are stated below:

Rates
Rights 2-33%
Exploration costs and other intangible flxed assets with special useful 5-10% and units of
lives production
Other intangible flxed assets 20-33%

2.8.5 Investment properties

Investment properties. which are heM to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation are measured
initialiy at cost any accumulated impairment losses.

investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property 15
permanentiy withdrawn from use and no ftıture economic benefıt is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses
on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in the consolidated statemenı of income
under other operating income/(expense).

2.8.6 Impairment of assets

Assets subject to depreciation and amortization are tested for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment Ioss is recognized for
the aınount by which the asset’s carning amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of net selling price and value in use. Recoverable amounts are estimated for
individual assets (for the cash-generating unit). Non-fınancial assets that are impaired are evaluated for
reversal of impairment amount at each reporting date.

2.8.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of quaiifying
assets. one that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale, are capitalized as pan of the
cost of that asset in the period in which the asset is prepared for its intended use on sale. Investment
revenues arising from the temporary utilization of the unused portion of facility Ioans are netted offfrom
the costs eligible for capitalization.

Ali other borrowing costs are recognized directly in the consolidated income statement of the period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Acenunting Policics (cont’d)

2.8.8 Financial instruments

Financial assets and fınancial liabilities are recognized in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet when
the Group becomes a legal party for the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets

Financial asseis. are initially measured at fair value. Iess transaction costs except for those financial assets
classifıed as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value. Ali financial
assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a fınancial asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by
the market.

Financial assets are classifıed into the following specifıed categories: financial assets as ‘at fair value
through profit or loss’, ‘held-to-maturity nvestments’, ‘available-for-sale financial assets’ and ioans and
receivables’. The classifıcation depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and k
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interesi nethod

The effective interest rate method k a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of
allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rario exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the fınancial asset to the net
presem value of the financial asset or in a shorter period where appropriate.

Incomes related to the debt instruments ıhat are held to maturity and are available for sale, and financial
assets that are classified as loans and receivables are calculated according to the effective interest rate
method.

.1ı’ailabkJbr salefinancial asseis

Some of the shares and long term marketable securities hehd by the Group are classifıed as available for
sale and recognized at their fair values.

The financial assets, which are not priced in an active market and the fair value cannot be recognized
accurately, are recognized at cost Iess accumulated impairments.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized directly in the investments revaluation
reserve with the exception of impairment losses. interest calculated using the effective interest metlıod
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets which are recognized directly in the
consolidated income statement. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gam or Ioss previously recognized in the investments revaluation reserve is included in the
consolidated income statement for the period.

Dividends associated with the available for sale equity instruments are recognized in consohidated income
statement when the Group has the right to receive the related payments.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Signiflcant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.8.8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont’d)

Receivables

Trade receivables and other receivables are initially recognized at their fair value. Subsequently,
receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

hnpainnent ojfinancial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair vnlııe through profıt or Ioss. are assessed for indicators of
impairment nt each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred afler the initial recognition of the fınancial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.

For receivables, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted nt the original elTective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the fınancial asset 15 reduced by the impairment loss directly for alI fınancial
assets with the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
ahiowance account. When a İrade receivable is uncohlectible, it is writİen off against the a)lowance
account. Subsequent recoverles of amounts previously written of!’ are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in the consolidated
income statement under general administrative expenses.

With the exception of available for sale equity instruments. if, in a subsequent period. the amount of the
impairment Ioss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively tü an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment Ioss 15 reversed through profıt or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortized cost wouid have been had the impairment not been recognized.

In respect of available for sale equity securitles, any increase in fair value subsequent tü an impairment
loss 15 recognized directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalenls

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly Iiçuid
investments which their maturities are three-months or hess from date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject tü an insigniflcant risk of clıanges in value. The
carrving amount of these assets approximates their fair value.
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EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(Arnounts are exprcsscd as Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unless oıherwisc indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (eont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Appiicd / Signiflcant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.8.8 Finanejal jnstruments (cont’d)

Financial Iiabllities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are ciassifıed according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting ali of its liabiiities. The accounting poiicies adopted for specifıc fınancial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities are ciassifled as either financial liabilitles ‘at fair value through profit er Ioss’ or other
financial liabilities.

Otherfinancial liabilhiles

Other fınancial iiabilities are initialiy accounted al fair value, net of transaction cosıs.

Subsequently other financial liabiiities are accounted at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. with interest expense recognized on an effective interest rate basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a fınancial liability and of
allocating the interest expense to the reievant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactiy
discounts the estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount.

Derivative fınancial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initialiy recognized at cost of acquisition and are subsequently accounted to their fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The method of recognizing the result of gam or loss is
dependent on the nature of the item being hedged.

On the date a derivative contract 15 entered into, the Group designates certain derivatives as eitiıer a
hedge of the fair value of a recognized asset or liabiiity (fair value hedge) or a hedge from changes that
could affect the statement of income due to a specific risk in cash flow of a forecasted transaction (cash
flow hedge). Fair value of the Group’s interest swap contracts is determined by vaiuation methods
depending on analyzable market data.

Changes in the fair value of the derivatives tiıat are designated and qualifıed as cash flow hedges and that
are highly effective. are recognized in equity as hedging reserve. Where the forecasted transaction ot tirm
commitment results in the recognition of an asset or a iiabiiitv. the gains and losses previously booked
under equity are transferred from equity and inciaded in the initial measurement of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or liabiiity. Otherwise. amounts booked under equity are transferred to the consolidated
statement of income and classifıed as revenue or expense in the period in which the hedged item affects
the statement of income.

26



(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELiK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TÜ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015
(Amounts mc exprcsscd as TurLish Lira (TRY Tlıousand’) unlcss otIıerise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (coot’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.8.8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments and hedıte accounting (cont’d

When the hedging instrument expires, 15 sold. or when a hedge no longer rneets the criteria for hedge than
hedge accounting is terminated. Any curnulative gam or loss existing in equity at that time rernains in
equity and is recognized when the committed or forecasted transaction ultimateiy is recognized in the
statement of income. However. if the hedged transaction is not reallzed, the cumulative gam or Ioss that
was reported in equity is immediateiy transferred to the profit or Ioss of the current period.

The Croup measures the derivative financial instruments heid for fair value hedge purpose with their fair
vaiues and recognizes thern in the consolidated income statement under financial incorneİ(expense).

2.8.9 The elTects of foreign exchange rate changes

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are converted at the exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date.

The Croup records foreign currency (currencies other than the functional currency of the related
company) transactions using exchange rates of the date the transaction is completed. Foreign curreney
monetan items are evaluated with exchange rates as of reporting date and arising foreign exchange
incorne/expenses are recorded in consolidated staternent of income. Ali rnonetary assets and liabiiities are
evaluated with exchange rates of the reporting date and related foreign currency transiation differences
are transferred to consolidated staternent of income. Non-rnonetaıy foreign currency items ıhat are
recognized at cost are evaluated with historic exchange rates. Non-monetan’ foreign currency iterns that
are recognized aL fair value are evaluated with exchange rates of the dates their fair values are
determined.

2.8.10 Earnings per share

Earnings per share, disclosed in the consolidated income statement, are determined by dividing the net
income attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period concerned.

in Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by distributing “bonus shares’ to shareholders frorn
retained earnings. in computing earnings per share, such “bonııs share” distributions are assessed as
issued shares. Accordingiy, the weighted-average number of shares are computed by taking into
consideration of the retrospective effects of the share distributions.

2.8.11 Subscquent events

Subsequent events inciude al! events that take place between the balance sheet date and the date of
authorization for the release of the balance sheet, although the evenıs occurred afler the announcernents
related to the net profıt/ioss or even after the public disclosure of other seiective fınancial information.

in the case that events occur requiring an adjustrnent, the Group adjusts the amounts recognized in its
consolidated financial statements to reflect the adjustrnents afler the balance sheet date. Post period end
evenis that are not adjusting events are disciosed in the notes when material.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applicd / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.8.12 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingdnt assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past legal or subtle
event. where it is probable that the Group wiil be required to settle dut obligation and when a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent Iiabilities are assessed continuously to
determine the probability of outflow of the economically beneficial asseis. For contingent Iiabilities.
when an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits are probable, provision 15 recognized for this
contingent Iiability in the period when the probability has ehanged. except for the cases where a reliable
estimate cannot be made.

When the Group’s contingent hiabihities’ availabihity is possible but the amount of resources containing
the economic beneflts cannot be measured reliabiy, then the Group diseloses this fact in the notes.

2.8.13 Related parties

A related party is ü person or entity that is related to reporting entity, the entity that is preparing its
fınancial statements.

(a) A person or a ciose member of that persons famlly is related to a reporting entity ifthat person:

(i) has control or joint control over ihe reporting entity;
(ii) has signiflcant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the

reporting entity.
(b) An entity 15 related to a reporting entity ifany of the following conditions apphies:

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate orjoint venture of the other entity (or an associate orjoint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(Hi) Both entities arejoint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity 15 a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity.
(v) The entity Isa post-employment benefit plan for the benefıt of employees of either the reporting

entity oran entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity 15 itseifsuch ü plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

(vi) The entity is controhled orjointly controlled by a person identifled in (a).
(vii) .4 person identifıed in (a)(I) has significarn intluence over the entiiy or is a member of the key

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applicd / Signifıcant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.8.13 Related parties (cont’d)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity
and a related party, regardless of whether a price 15 charged.

2.8.14 Taxation and deferred income tases

Turkish fax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax
return. Therefore. provisions for taxes, as reficeted in the consoiidated financial statements. have been
calculated on a separate-entiiy basis.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current ta and deferred tax.

Current fax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profıt for the year. Taxable profit differs from profıt as
reported in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductibie in future and it further excludes items that are never taxabie or deductible. The
Group’s iiability for current tax 15 calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred ıax is determined by calculating the tempomıy difYerences between the carrying amounts of
assets/liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases. used in the computation of
the taxable profit, using currently enacted tax rates. Deferred tax Iiabilities are generaliy recognized for
ali taxable temporary differences where deferred tax assets resulting from deductible temporary
differences are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable protit wili be available
against which the deductibie temporary difference can be utilized. Such assets and Iiabilities are not
recognized if the temporaıy difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabiiities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profıt.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates. and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference wiil not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred fax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investrnents and interests are only recognized if it is probabie timi here wili be suffıcient taxable proflts
against which to utilize the benefıts of the temporary ditTerences and they are expected 10 reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufflcient taxable protits wili be available to allow alI or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and iiabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the Iiability is setiled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax iaws) that lıave been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance slıeet date. The measurement of deferred tax Iiabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its asseis and liabiiities.

29



(Convenience Translation into English ofConsolidated Financial Statements Odginally Issued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRiKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015
(Amouns are cxprcsscd as Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand’) un!ess oIhervise indıLaled.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.8.13 Taxation and deferred income taxes (cont’d)

Deferred tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilitles are offset when there 15 a legaliy enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax Iiabilities and when they relate to ineome taxes Ievied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities ona net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in the consolidated income statement,
except when they relate to the items credited or debited directly to the equity (in this case the deferred tax
related to these irems k also recognized directly in the equity). or where they arise from the initial
accounting of a business combination. in the case of a business combination, the tax effect 15 taken into
account in caicuiating goodwiil or determining the excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets. liabilities and contingent Iiabilities over cost.

2.8.15 Employee bencfıts

According to the Turkish and Romanian Iaw and union agreements, employee termination payments are
made to employees in the case of retiring or involuntariiy leaving. Such payments are considered asa paN
of defıned retirement benefit plan in accordance with [AS 19 (revised) “Employee Beneflts” (“IAS 19”).

The termination indemnities accounted in the balance sheet and seniority incentive premium in
accordance with the union agreements in force represenı the presenı value of the residual obligation.
Acruarial gains and losses, on the other hani are recognized in the statement of other comprehensive
income.

The Group makes certain assumptions about discount rates. infiation rates. future salary increases and
employee tumover rates in calculation of provisions for employee benefits. The present value of
empioyee beneflts is calculated by an independent actuary and some changes are done in accounting
assumptions used in calculations. The impact of the changes in assumptions is recognized in the
statement of income. The detaik related with the defıned benefit plans are stated in Note 15.

Liabilities due to unused vacations ciassifled as provisions due to employee benetits are accrued and
discounted if the discount effect is material.

The Group companies operating in Turkev are required to pay social insurance premiums to the Social
Security Agency. As long as it pays ıhese insurance premiums, the Group does not have any ftırther
obiigation. These premiurns are reflected in the payroll expenses incurred in the period.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principlcs Applied / Signiücant Aceounting PoIicies (eont’d)

2.8.16 Government grants and ineentives

Government grants and incentives are reeognized at fair value when there is assurance that these grants
and incentives wilI be received and the Groııp has met alI conditions required. Government grants and
incentives rehated to costs are recognized as revenue during the periods they are matched with the costs
they wili cover.

2.8.17 Statement of cash llows

Cash flows during the period are classified and reported as operating, investing and financing activities in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Cash flows arising from operating activities represent the cash flows that are used in or provided by the
Group’s steel products and metal sales activities.

Cash flows arising from investment activities represent the caslı flows that are used in or provided by the
investing activities (direct investments and fınancial investments) of the Group.

Cash flows arising from financing activities represent the cash proceeds from the fınancing activities of
the Group and the repayments of these funds.

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of the cash on hand, the demand deposits and highly liquid other
short-term investments which their maturities are three months or less from the date of acquisition, are
readily convertible to cash and are not subject to a signifıcant risk of ehanges in value.

The translation difference that occurs due to translation from ftrnctional currency to presentation currency
is shown as translation difference on cash flow statement.

2.8.18 Share capital and dividends

Common shares are classifled as equity. Dividends on common shares are recognized in equity in the
period which they are approved and declared.

2.8.19 Trcasury shares

When share capital recognized as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid which
includes directly attributable costs, is net of any tax effects, and is recognized asa deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are ciassifled as treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from total equity.
When treasury shares are soW or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recoanized as on increase
in equit. and the resulting surplus or defıcit on the transaction is transferred to/from retained eamings.

NOTE 3- SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The operations of the Group in Iskenderun and Ereğil have been defined as geographical segments.
However, the segments with similar economic characteristics have been combined into a single operating
segment considering the nature of the products and the production processes, methods to allocate the
products and the type of customers or to provide services.
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NOTE $ - CASLI AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The detail of cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 15 as follows:

Cash

Banks — demand deposits

Banks — time deposits

Time deposit interest accruals (-)
Cash and cash equivalents excluding interest accruals

The breakdown of demand deposits is presented below:

US Dollars

T RY

EU RO

Romanian Lel

GB Pound

Japanese Yen

Other

The breakdown of time deposits is presented below:

US Dollars

T RY

E U RO

Romanian Lei

31 December 31 December

Group’s baak deposits consist ofdeposits with maturity from 1 day to 3 mornhs depending on immediate
cash needs. Interest is received based on current short-term rates on the market.

2015 2014

28 27

45.482 52.083

2.889.193 2.134.700

2.934.703 2.186.810

(4.005) (5.037)

2.930.698 2.181.773

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

16.775 19.530

19.328 15.511
8.775 10.146

493 6.746

15 13

4 137

92 -
45.482 52.083

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

2.866.533 1.768.703

9.504 357.129
13.016 8.745

140 123
2.889.193 2.134.700
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(Amounts are exprcsscd as Turkish Lira tTRY Thousand’) unIss othenvisc ındicatcd

NOTE 5- FINANCİAL DERIVATWE INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Derivative instruments for fair value hedae

As of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the detalis of forward, option and cross currency
swap transactions for fair value hedge are as follows:

Assets

___________

Liahilities
Nominal Fair Valuc Nominal Fafr Valuc

31 December 2015 Valuc Valuc

___________

Forward contracts
Buy USD!Sell EUR Less than 3 momhs 111.185 8.571 17.848 85
Buy USDIScU EUR Betwccn 3-6 monıhs 14.154 551 -

155.639 9.122 17.838 85

Options contmcts
Boy USD/SclI EUR Less (han 3 monlhs 11.187 1.709 -

11.187 1.709

Cross currency / interest mtes swap conlracts
Buy USD/SeII TRY Between 6-12 months 44.841 22.386 44.841 13.946
Boy EURJScII TRY More than 12 months 88.421 30.527 88.421 69

133,262 52.913 133.262 14.015

300.088 63.734 151.110 14.100

ASSCtS Liabilitics
Nominal Fair Value Nomğml Fair Value

31 December 2014 Valuc

_____________

Value

___________

Fonvard contnds
Boy USD/SeIl TRY Lcss than 3 monlhs 441.870 18.776 -

Boy TRY/Sell USD Less than 3 months - - 77,876 3.957
441.870 18.776 77.876 3.957

Opdons contracts
Buy ‘rRYİSelI USD Less (han 3 months 11.598 1.108 23.196 214
Boy USD/SelI EUR Betwcen 6-12 months 11.843 696 23.686 348
Boy USD/SclI EUR More (han 12 months 8.935 549 17.871 97

32.376 2.353 64.753 659
Cross currency swap contracts
Buy USD/Sell TRY More than 12 months 50.066 18.630 50.066 9. 126
Boy EUR’SeIl TRY More dun 12 monihs 117.734 30.813 17.734 3.253

167.800 49.443 167.800 12.379

642.046 70.572 310.429 16.995
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NOTE 5- FINANCİAL DERWATWE INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Derjvative instruments for cash tlow hedge

Forıı’ard contracis for cashfiow hedges of currency risk ofsaks:

Buy USD — Seli EUR forward contracts measured at fair value throııgh other comprehensive income
are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges of forecast sales in EUR. These forecast
transactions are highly probable and their maturities van’ between Ianuary 2016 and March 2017.

The terms and conditions of the forward contracts match the terms and conditions of the expected
highiy probable forecast sales in EUR. As a result, no hedge inefl’ectiveness arises requiring
recognition and is tracked under other comprehensive incomeİespense accounts since the
aforementioned derivative ıransaction 15 a cash flow hedge derivative transaction until the sales 15
realized in accordance with hedge accounting. TRY 8.450 thousand is recognised on consolidated
statement of income until the collection is made foilowing the recording of revenue.

in respect of these contracts which has a nominal value of TRY 623.640 thousand for the purpose of
hedging cash flow risk, with related deferred tax effect TRY 11.931 thousand was ineluded in other
comprehensive income (31 December 2014: TRY 17.028 thousand).

As of 31 December 2015, TRY 50.635 thousand realised reciassifıcation from other comprehensive
income to sales during the year (31 December 2014: None).

Cross currenev and inıcresı rate swap conıracıs for cash flow hcdges of interesi rate aııl currencv
risk ofborrowings.

Group has fıxing contracts for future interest and principle paymenıs of floating interest rate
borrowings. The fair values of these contracts match the floating rate borrowingş and was included in
other comprehensive income. The maturiıies of these transactions wiil be completed in December
2017.

The terms and conditions of those contracts match the terms and conditions of the floating rate
borrowings. Asa result, no hedge ineffectiveness arises requiring recognition through profit or Ioss.

In respect of these contracts which has a nominal value of TRY 201 . 186 thousand, for the purpose of
hedging cash flow risk, with related deferred tax effect TRY (15.004) thousand was included in other
comprehensive income (31 December 2014: TRY (7.160) thousand).

Conunodin’ ssıap coşıtracıs for hedges o/krice risk of rcnv material purehases:

The Group purchases iron ore on an ongoing basis as its operating activities. The Group has
concluded iron ore swap contracts in order to be protected from price risk of iron ore which shaii be
suppiied in future and shail be used in the production of related sales in iine with its contracted sales.
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NOTE 5- FINANCİAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Commodity sııvp contracıs for hedges ofprice risk ofrmv maıerial pnrchases (cont ‘d):

Group’s iron ore forward contracts measured at fair value through other comprehensive income match
iron ore price risk associaıed whh future hong term sales contracts. These sales are highly probable
and terms and conditions of iron ore forward contracts match sales terms. As a result, no hedge
ineffectiveness arises requiring recognition through profit or loss.

The maturitjes of these 100 thousands tons of iron ore contracts which has a nominal value of TRY
12. 117 thousand, are vary between Januaıy 2016 and January 2017 and fair valuc with related
deferred tax effect, TRY (412) thousand was ineluded in other comprehensive income.

As of 31 December 2015, TRY 2.493 thousand realised reciassification from other comprehensive
income to cost of inventories during the year (31 December 2014: None).

NOTE 6- FINANCİAL LIABILITIES

Breakdown of financial Iiabilities is as follows:

3 1 December 31 December
2015 2014

24.286 637.577

1.047.256 1.222.019

- 206.233
).07L542 2.065.829

1.904.361 1.347.905
1.904.361 1.347.905

2.975.903 3.413.734

Shon term fınancial llabilities

Current portion of long term fınancial Iiabilities
Corpomte bonds issued
Total short term financial liabilities

Long term financial Iiabilities
Total long term financial liabilities

As of3l December 2015, the breakdown of the Group’s
weighted average interest rates is presented as follows:

Weighıed
]ype of Averuge Rate of

Interest Tvpe Currency Interest tV0)

No interest

loans with their original currency and their

TRY

Shnrt Term
Portion

Long ‘E erm
Portion 31 December 2015

Fixed ‘l’RY 9,26
Fbed US Dollars 3,99
Fixed [URO 3.27
F!oating US Dollars LihoN-2,03
Floaıing EURO Eurfnor+0.5
Floating Japanese Yen JPY LiboftO,22

24.286 - 24.286
170.482 12.865 183.347
22.925 52.523 75.44%

2.422 46.725 19.117
717.249 1.619.318 2.336.667
103.824 133.919 247.743
30.354 28.911 59.265

1.071.542 1.904.361 2.975.903
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Tthe breakdown of the ban repayments with respect to their maturitles as follows:

Within 1 year
Between 1-2 years
Between 2-3 years
Between 3-4 years
Between 4-5 years
Five years or more

___________________

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are exprcssd as TurLish Lira (‘TRY Thuusand’) unlcss otherwise ındıcated.)

NOTE 6— FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (cont’d)

As of 31 December 2014, the breakdown of the Group’s loans with their original currency and their
weighted average interest rates is presented as follows:

Weiglıled
Type of Aven Kate of Short Temı Long Term

Interest Tvpe Cunency Interest (%) Poflion Portion 31 December 2014

No interest TRY - 24.300 - 24.300
Fked TRY 9,10 196.110 166.462 362.572
Fi’(ed US Dolhrs 1,68 396.802 58.794 455.596
Fixed EURO 5,50 955 2.971 3.926
Fatfrıg TRY TrIiborI,5 206.233 - 206.233
FIoathg US DOIIS Liboı+2,l8 1.113.305 889.051 2,002,356
Fboathıg EURO Euı*or+0,32 103.141 185.311 288.452
Fboating Japanese Yen JPY Lıbor+0,22 24.983 45.316 70.299

2.065.829 1.347.905 3.413.734

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

1.071.542 2.065.829
921.923 588.577
488.184 522.255
328.902 137.072
163.914 16.680

1.438 83.321
2.975.903 3.413.734
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NOTE 7- TRADE RECEİVABLES AND PAYABLES

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Group’s trade receivables are as foilows:

Short term trade receivables
Tmde receivables

Due from related panies (Note 29)
Notes receivables

Discount on receivables (-)
Provision for doubtful trade receivables (-)

The movement of the provision for short term doubtful tmde receivables are as follows:

Opening balance
Provision for the period
Doubtful receivables collected (-)
Provision released (-)
Translation difference
Closing balance

62.107 61.380
8.210 1.804
(126) -

(1.303) (62)
9.105 (1.015)

77.993 62.107

According to the market conditions and product types. a certain interest charge is applied for deferred
trade receivables and overdue interest 15 applied for overdue trade receivables.

As the Group provides services and products to a large number of customers, collection risk is widely
distributed amongst these customers and there is 110 significant eredit risk exposure. Therefore, the
Group does not provide for any further provision beyond the doubtful receivables provisions that the
Group has already provided for in the consolidated financial statements.

As of the balance slıeet date, there 15 110 signiflcant amount of overdue receivables within the trade
receivables.

Other explanaıory notes related to the credit risk of the Group are diselosed in Note 30.

The Group provides provision according to the balances of ali unsecured receivables under legal
follow up.

31 December il December
2015 2014

1.670.078 1.784.623

43. 130 36.409
- 42

(2.586) (2.107)

(77.993) (62.107)
1 .632.629 1.756.860

1 January -
31 December2ol5

1 ianuary -
3 1 December 2014
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NOTE 7— TRADE RECEWABLES AND PAYABLES (cont’d)

As of the balance sheet dale, the detajis of the Group’s trade payables are as follows:

Shon temı irade pavables

Trade payables
Due to related parties (Note 29)
Discount on trade payables (-)
Expense accruals

NOTE 8- OTHER RECEİVABLES AND PAYABLES

As of the balance sheet date. ilie detajis of the Group’s other receivables and payables are as follows:

Short term other receivables

Receivables from water system construction
Deposits and guarantees giyen

Lonı! term other receivables

Receivables from Privatization Authority
Receivables from water system construction
Deposits and guarantees giyen
Provision for receivables from Privatization
Authority (-)

The movement of the provision for other doubtful receivables are as follows:

Opening balance
Provision for the period
Other doubtful receivables collected (-)
Translation difference
Ciosing balance

3 1 December
2015

3 1 December
2014

557.016 400.717
26.630 18.329
(3.086) (1.791)

1.643 324

582.203 417.579

31 December
2015

3 1 December
2014

1.763 3.527
306 273

2.069 3.800

3 1 December 3 1 December
2015 2014

67.397 62.403
14.036 22.836

1.033 902

(61.397) (62.403)

15.069 23.738

1 ianuary
31 December20ls

t January -
31 December 2014

62.403 55.958
5.436 6.699
(482) -

40 (254)
67.397 62.403
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NOTE 8— OTHER RECEİVABLES AND PAYABLES (cont’d)

Short term other payables
Taxes payable

Ernployees income tax payables
Deposits and guararnees received

Dividend payables to shareholders (*)

31 December

2015

3.093

31 December

2014

951

(*) Dividend payable represents the uncollected balances by shareholders related to the prior years.

NOTE 9- INVENTORIES

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Group’s inventories are as follows:

Raw materials

Work in progress

Finished goods

Spare paris

Goods in transit

Other inventories

Allowance for impairment on inventories (-)

31 December
2014

730.302 773.832
473.829 648.460

890.682 877.211

603.435 480.502

409.524 361.212

298.551 228.924

(168.433) (111.752)

3.237.890 3.258.389

The movemeni of the allowance for impairment on inventories:

Opening balance

Provision for the period

Provision released (-)
Translation difference

Ciosing balance

The Group has provided an allowance for the impairment on the inventories of finished goods, work
in progress and raw materials within the scope of aging reports in the cases when their net realizable
values are lower than their costs or for slow moving inventories. The provision released has been
recognized under cost of sales (Note 2 1).

21.453 24.202

7.394 5.248

1.740 1.190
33.680 31.591

3 1 December
2015

1 January - 1 January -
3 1 December 201 5 3 1 December 2014

111.752 88.739

39.092 29.951

(12.256) (15.013)

29.845 8.075

168.433 111.752
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NOTE 10— PREPAİD EXPENSES

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Group’s short term prepaid expenses are as follows:

Insurance expenses
Order advances giyen
Prepaid utiliw allowance to employees
Other prepaid expenses

31 December 31 December

As of the balance sheet date. the detalls of the Group’s long term prepaid expenses are as follows:

2015 2014

28.490 18.949
12.596 3.787
2.853 2.612

43.939 25.348

1 Ianuary - 1 ianuan -

3 1 December 201 5 3 1 December 20 14

57.691 51.647
- 1.488

(568) -

14.608 4.556
71.731 57.691

71.731 57.69!

According to the recent valuation reports, the fair value of the Group’s investment properties is TRY
174.782 thousand (31 December 2014: TRY 216.760 thousand). The fair values of the investment
properties have been determined in reference to the valuations of independent valuation flrms
authorized by the CMB of Turkey. The valuations are undertaken predominantiy by using the
precedent values of similar properties as references under market approach.

According to the decision of Board of Directors of the Company, dated 10 April 2015 and numbered
9350; the investment properties of the Croup located in Balıkesir. Edremit District. Altınoluk town.
are soW on 15 April 2015 in return for the value of TRY 46.000 thousand. TRY 45.767 thousand
profit from investment property sales, recognised under other operating income.

The Oroup’s alI investment properties consist of land parcels.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group generated rent income amounting to TRY 377
thousand (3! December 2014: TRY 256 thousand) recognized under other operating income.

2015 2014

31.477 20.250
6.465 4.200
6.619 6.622
8.193 6.248

52.754 37.320

31 December 31 December

Order advances giyen
Insurance expenses
Other prepaid expenses

NOTE 11— INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Cost
As of 1 January

Additions

Disposals

Translation difference

As of 31 December

I3ook value
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements OriginalIy lssued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FORTHEYEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER2OIS

(Amounts are exprcsscd as Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand’> unless oıherwisc indicared.)

NOTE 12- PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

The breakdown of depreciation expenses related to property, plant and equipment is as follows:

Associated wiih cost of production
General administrative expenses
Markeling, sales and distribution expenses
Research and development expenses

3! December
2015

523.859

31 December
2014

402.224
10.507
13.653

NOTE 13— INTANGİBLE ASSETS

Cost
Opening bahnce as of t ianuaıy
Translation ditTerence
Mditions
Transfers from CIP
Transfers (4)

Closing balance as of 31 December 2015

Accumulated amorlization
Opening babnce as of t ianuary
Translation diffrence
Charge for the period
Transfers (49
Ciosing balance as ol’ 31 December 2015

Net book valuc as of 31 Decemher 2014

Net book value as of 31 December 2015

(49 The Group’s opening balances
property, plant and equipment.

(119.676)
(28.403)
(15.431)

As of 31 December 2015. the Group has no collaterais or pledges upon its intangible assets (31
December 2014: None).

6,846
18.142

801 144
549.648 426.528

Exploration Cosıs
and Other AsseLs

v’ıth Specilic Olber Intangible
Rights Useful Life Assets Total

252.514 95.819 9.717 358.050
62.283 - 3.983 66.266
14.944 4.221 618 19.783
4.074 - - 4.074

- (4.206) - (4.206)
333.815 95.834 14.318 143.967

(62.603) (7.212) (189.491)
- (3.916) (32.319)

(5.354) (630) (21.415)
- 1.615 - 1.615

(163.510) (66.342) (11.758) (241.610)

132.838 33.216 2.505 168.559

170.305 29.492 2.560 202.357

of Ieasehold improvements under intangible assets transferred to
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(Convenience Translation irna English ofConsolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015
(Amouncs are expressed as Turkısh Lra (TRY Thousand) unless oclıerwise indkatcd.)

NOTE 13— INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cout’d)

Cost
Opening balance as of 1 January
Translation differcnce
Additbns
Transfers from CIP
Ciosing balance as of 31

Accumulated amonization
Opening balance as of 1 Januar
Trnnslation differcnce
Charge for the period
Ciosing balance as of 31

Net book value as of3I

Net book value as of 31

Exploration Costs
and Other Assets

with Specilic
Riuhts UsefulLife

___________ __________

220.331 91.881 7.105 319.317
18.771 290 1.111 20.172
10.747 3.648 139 14.831
2.665 - 1.062 3.727

252.511 95.819 9.717 358.050

(98.121) (56.144) (5.902) (160.167)
(8.227) (88) (1. 108) (9.423)

(13.328) (6.371) (202) (19.901)
(119.676) (62.603) (7.212) (189.491)

122.210 35.737 1.203 159.150

132.838 33.216 2.505 168.559

The breakdown of amortization expenses related to intangible assets k as follows:

NOTE 14- GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND INCENTWES

31 December
2014

17.374

2.013

514

These grants and incentives can be ıısed by ali companies, which meet the related legislative
requirements and those grants have no sectoral differences.:

1 Incentives under the jurisdiction of the research and development iaw (100% corporate tax
exemption etc.)

/ Inward processing permission certificates,
‘ Social Security Institution incentives
J Insurance premium empIoer share incentive.

Research and development incentive premiums taken or certain ta be taken amounts to TRY 836
thousand (2014: TRY 531 thousand) which are accounted under income statement for the year ended
31 December 2015.

Other Inlangible
Assets

December 2014

Tom!

December 2014

December 2013

December 2014

Associated with cost of production
General adminktrative expenses
Marketinız. sales and distribution expenses

3 1 December
2015

17.504
3.363

548
21.415 19.901
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Staternents Originaliy lssued in Turkish — 5cc
NoLe 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCEAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

tAmouncs am cxprcsscd as Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand’) unless rnhcnvisc indıcatcd.)

NOTE 15— EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Group’s short terrn payables for employee beneflts are as follows:

Duc to personnel

Social security premiurns payable

3 l December

2015

93.459

26.241

119.700

3 1 December

2014

74.611

24.909

99.520

Long terrn provision of the ernpioyee termination beneflts of the Uroup is as follows:

Provisions for ernployee termination beneflts
Provisions for seniority incentive prernium
Provision for unpaid vacations

404.699 393.478
28.289 25.389

72.927 68.857
505.915 487.724

According to the articles of Turkish Labor Law in force, there is an obligation to pay the legal
employee termination benefıts to each ernployee whose ernployment contracts are ended properly
entitling thern to receive employee termination benefits. Also. in accordance with the effective laws of
the Social lnsurance Act No: 506 No: 2422 on 6 March 1981 and No: 4447 on 25 August 1999 mıd
with the amended Article 60 of the related AcI, it is obliged to pay the employees their legal emploee
termination benefits. who are entitled to terminate.

As of31 Decernber 2015, the arnount payable consists ofone rnonth’s salary lirnited to a maximurn of
TRY 3.828,37 (31 December 2014: TRY 3.438.22). As of 1 January 2016, the employee termination
beneFıt has been updated 10 a mıxirnum of TRY 4.092,53.

The employee termination benefıt legally is not subject to any funding requirement.

The employee termination benefit has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future
probable obligation of the Group arising from the retirernent of employees. TAS 19 (“Ernployee
Beneflts”) requires actııarial valuation rnethods to be developed to estimate the Group’s obligation
under defined benefit plans. The obligation as of 31 December 2015 has been calculated by an
independent actuary. The actuarial assurnptions used in the calculation of the present value of the
future probable obligation are as follows:

Discount rate
Infiation rate
Salaıy increase
Maximurn liability increase

31 Decernber 2015

10.70%
7,75%

real 1.5%
7,75%

31 Decernber 2014

8,00%
6.50%

real 1.5%
650%

3! December
2015

3 1 Decernber
2014
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as TurLish Lira (TRY Thousancf) unless olhcrwise indicated.)

NOTE 15— EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (cont’d)

Discount rates are determined considering the expected duration of the retirement obligations and the
currency in which the obligations wili be paid. in calculations as of 31 December 2015, a fıxed
discount rate is used. Long term infiation estimates are made using an approach consistent with
discount rate estimates and long term infiation rate fıxed over years is used.

The anticipated rate of resignation which do not result in the payment of employee benefits is also
considered in the calculation. The anticipated rate of resignation is assumed to be related with the past
experience, therefore past experiences of employees are analyzed and considered in the calculation. in
the actuarial calculation as of 31 December 2015, the anticipated rate of resignation is considered to be
inversely proportional to the past experience. The anticipated rate of resignation is between 2%-0% for
the employees with past experience between 0-15 years or over.

The movement of the provision for employee termination benefıts is as follows:

Opening balance
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuadal Ioss/(gain)
Termination beneflts paid
Translation difference
Ciosing balance

3 1 December 2015 3 1 December 2014

393.478 307.528
40.125 26.379
30.466 28.568

(22.930) 75.386
(36.709) (39.777)

269 (4.606)
404.699 393.478

The sensitivity anaiysis of the assumptions which was used for the calculation of provision for
employment termination beneflts as of3 1 December 2015 as follows:

Sensitivity Ievei

Rate

Chage in employee benefıts Iiability

Rate
Chage in employee benefıts Iiability

Discount rate
1% increase 1% decrease

(35.505) 41.291

Infiation rate

1 % increase 1 % decrease
38.280 (25.618)

t January - 1 January -
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015
(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira C’TRY Thousand”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 15— EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (cont’d)

According to the cıırrent labor agreement, employees completing their lOth, ISth and 2Oth service
years receive seniority incentive premium payments.

The rnovement of the provision for seniority incentive premium is as follows:

Opening balance
Service cosı
Interest cost
Actuarial loss’ıain)
Termination benefıts paid
Translation difference

________________________________________________

Ciosing balance

The movement of the provision for unused vacation is as follows:

Opening balance
Provision for the period
Vacation paid during the period (-)
Provisions released (-)
Translation difference

_____________________________________________

Ciosing balance

NOTE 16— PROVISIONS

The Group’s short term provisions are as follows:

Provision for lawsuits
Provision for termination fee of long term contract
Penalty prov. for employment shortage of disabled pers.
Provision for state right on mining activities
Provision for civil defense fund

1 January -
3 1 December 201 5

t Ianuary -
31 December 2014

25.389 1 7.667
3.970 2.312

2.229 1.870
(1.743) 5.948
(1.602) (2.224)

46 (184)
28.289 25.389

1 January -
31 December 2015

1 Januaıy -
31 December 2014

68.857 67.037
54.151 48.475
(5.102) (6.474)

(45.042) (39.983)

63 (198)

72.927 68.857

3 1 December 31 December
2015 201$

210.914 214.722

218.070 -
5.434 5,223
2.589 4.484

- 10.099
437.007 234.528
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are cxpresscd as Turkısh Lira (“TRY Thousand’) unless oıhcrwise indicated.)

NOTE 16— PROVISIONS (cont’d)

Provision for Iawsuits

As of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, Iawsuits filed by and against the Group are as
follows:

3 1 December 31 December
2015 2014

Lawsuits filed by the Group 474.468 401.529
Provision for lawsuits filed by the Group 54.849 49.380

The provisions for the lawsuits fıled by the Group represents the doubtful trade receivables.

3 1 December 3 1 December
2015 2014

Lawsuits filed against the Group 293.156 242.347
Provision for Iawsuits filed against the Group 210.914 214.722

The Cornpany, prepared its consolidated financial statements as of 31 March 2005, 30 June 2005 and
30 September 2005 aceording to CMB’s Comrnuniqu Serial X1 No 25 on “Accounting Standards to
be implernented in Capital Markets” which 15 not in effect today, whereas its consolidated financial
statements of 31 December 2005 was prepared according to international Financial Reporting
Standards by virtue of the Article 726 and Ternporary Article 1 of the aforernentioned CommuniquĞ,
and CMB’s letter no. SPK.017/83-3483 dated 7 March 2006, sent to Ihe Group Management. The
aforementioned Comrnuniqud (Serial XI No. 25 on the “Accounting Standards to be irnplernented in
Capital Markets”), and ComrnuniquĞs inseriing some provisions thereto together with the
ComrnuniquĞs arnending it, became effective starting with the consolidated financial statements of the
first interim period ending after 1 January 2005.

CMB asked the Company to prepare its consolidated financial statements of 31 December 2005 alI
over again according to the sarne accounting standards set used during the period, to publish those
statements, and to submit thern to the General Assembly Approval as soon as possible, by stating on
its decision no. 21/526 dated 5 May 2006 that the Company’s changing the accounting standards set
used during the term (Serial XI. No 25) at dıe end of the same term (IFRS) caused decrease arnount of
TRY 152.330 tlıousand on the period due to negative goodwill incorne.

The Company challenged the aforementioned decision before the 1 Ith Administrative Court of Ankara
(E. 2006/1396). This Iawsuit was rejected on 29 March 2007, but the Company appealed this rejection
on Il Septernber 2007. l3th Charnber of the Council of State rejected the appeal on 12 May 2010:
however the Company also appealed this rejeclion on 2 September 2010. However, I3th Charnber of
the Council of State also dismissed this appeal against rejection on 6 June 2012 with its decision No.
E. 2010/4196. K. 2012İI499. This decision sas notifled to the Company’s Iawyers on 16 IuIy 2012.
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EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amuunts arc cxprcsscd as Turkislı Lira C’TRY Thousand> unlcss otherwisc indicated.)

NOTE 16— PROVISİONS (cont’d)

Provision for lawsuits (cont’d)

CMB. prepared the Company’s consolidated Fınancial statements as of 31 December 2005, which had
been prepared according to the IFRS. by adding the negative goodwill of TRY 152.330 thousand, that
had previousl been added to the accurnulated eamings, to the profıt of 2005 on its own motion and
account, and published thern on Istanbul Stock Exchange Bulletin on 15 August 2006; with the
rationale that the Cornpany had not fulflhled iıs due demand on szrounds that “Article 726 and
Temporary Provision t of CMB’s Cornrnuniqud Serial XI, No. 25 authorize the use of IFRS on
consolidated flnancial statements of 2005, although CMB had giyen the Cornpany a ‘permission’ No.
SPK.0.17/83-3483 of 7 March 2006, and the Iawsuits regarding this issue are stilI pending”. The
Cornpany challenged CMB’s aforernentioned decision by a separate lawsuit on 10 October 2006. 1 Ith
Administrative Court of Ankara rejected this case on 25 June 2007. The Company appealed this
rejection Il October 2007; I3th Charnber of the Council of State, accepted the appeal request and
abolished the rejectionjudgment. CMB appealed the Charnber’s decision on 6 Septernber 2010. l3th
Charnber of the Council of State accepted CMB’s appeal and reverted its previous abolishrnent
decision, and ratifıed Il ili Administrative Court of Ankara’s judgment by the majority of the votes on
30 May 2012 with its decision no. E. 2010/1405; K. 2012/1352. This decision was notifled to the
Cornpany’s Iawyers on 20 July 2012.

Had the Company started ro prepare its consolidated financial staternents in accordance with IFRS
aher 31 December 2005, it would also have to present the comparative consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS based on “IFRS : First-time adoption of International Financial
Reporıing Standards” and the previously recognized negative goodwilll would be transferred directly to
retained earnings on I January 2005 instead of recognizing in the consolidated incorne staternent in
accordance with “tERS 3: Business Combinations”. Therefore, the net profit for the periods ended 31
December 2015 and 31 Decernber 2014 wilI not be affected from the above mentioned disputes.
Cornpany’s Shareholders’ General Assembly. which was heid at 30 March 2006, decided dividend
distribution according to the consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2005. which was
prepared according lo IFRS. Privatization Administration, who has a usufruct right over 1 (one) equity
share arnong the Company shares it transferred to Ataer Holding A.Ş., fıled a lawsuit at 1 May 2006
the 3th Commercial Court of Ankara against the aforementioned General Assembly decision, and
claimed that, dividend distribution decision must be abolished and TRY 35.673 thousand allegedly
unpaid dividend must be paid to itself(E. 2006/218). The Court rejected the case on 23 October 2008:
Privatization Administration appealed this rejection on 7 January 2009. Court of Appeals’ 1 lth
Charnber reversed this rejectionjudgment on 30 November 2010; this tirne the Company appealed the
Charnber’s decision on 18 February 2011. However, the Charnber rejected the Company’s appeal on
14 July 2011. The case ille, sent back to 3th Cornrnercial Court of Ankara once again. (E. 2011/551).
The case was disrnissed at the hearing heid on 26 June 2015. The case is at the stage ofappeal.

The Cornpany, based on the above mentioned reasons, doesn’t expect for the possible effects of
changes in the net proflt for the year ended 31 Decernber 2005 due to the Iawsuits mentioned above to
have any irnpact in the accompaning consolidated fınancial statements as of3l Decernber 2015 and
31 December 2014.

Enerjia Metal Maden Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. initiated a debt coltection proceeding that rnight end with
a bankruptcy judgrnent against the Cornpany based on the Expon Protocol No. 69187 of 2 July 2009
and “Additional Terrns to the Erdernir-Enerjia Export Protocol No. 68197” drafted by and between
Enerjia and the Cornpany.

51



(Convenieıee Translation into English ofConsolidated Financial Sıatements Originally Issued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

ERELİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSWIARIES

NOTES TÜ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(AmounLs art exprcssed as Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand) unless othcrwise indicaıed.)

NOTE 16 — PROVISIONS (cont’d)

Provision for Iawsuits (cont’d)

However the process stopped upon the Company’s objection to Enerjia’s request. and that led Enerjia
to fıle a lawsuit against the Company before the 7th Commercial Court of Ankara on 27 March 2010
claiming that the objection should be overruled and USD 68.312.520 should be paid to itseif (E.
2010/259). The Court dismissed the case, in favor of the Company, on 23 June 2011. Enerjia appealed
this rejection. 23rd Chamber of the Court of Appeals accepted this rejection on 6 April 2012 (E.
201 1/2915) and after (his, the case Ele was sent back to the 7th Commercial Court of Ankara. The
case ille was sent to the 4th Commercial Coun of Ankara due to the case shall seen by delegation
according to the regulatory frarnework regarding the commercial courts. The Court has dismissed the
case at the hearing held on 9 September 2015. The case is at the stage ofappeal.

An action ofdebt was instituted by Messrs. Bor-San Isı Sistemleri Üretim ve Pazarlama A.Ş. against
our company at the 3rd Civil Court of Kdz. Ereğli on 17 April 2013 under fıle no 2013/253 Esas
claiming for the compensation of the loss arising from the sales contract of TRY 18 thousand,
reserving the rights for surplus. The Company was informed from the amendment petition. which was
served to the company on 1 November 2013 that the plaintiff pleaded from the court to raise the claim
to TRY 10.838 thousand as assessed by the expert opinion submitted to the court. The Company
contested to the expert opinion and the amendment petition within the statutory period. The court has
giyen the judgment of dismissal on Il March 2014. The plaintiff, Bor-San Isı Sistemleri Uretim ve
Pazarlama A.Ş. has appealed aızainst the judgment. Upon the reversal of judgment. the Company
appealed the decision of Supreme Coun of Appeal. The rejection decision of Supreme Court of
Appeal has been notifıed to the Company on 28 January 2015, The case ongoing with the Kdz. Ereğli
Civil Court of First lnstance 3rd (2015/16 E.) has dismissed at the hearing held on 9 September 2015.
The case is at the stage of appeal.

Corus international Trading Ltd. Co. (new trading title: Tata Steel International (North America) Ltd.)
located at lllinois state of United States of America and the Company executed a contract in 2008.
The company fuliuled alI its performances arisen from this contract in January and February in 2009.
Corus International Trading Ltd. Co. sold to third parties the products supplied from our company but
thereafier alleged that they directed claim to some compensation and that these claims must be covered
by Erdemir. Parties could not reach an exact agreement about this matter and then Corus international
Trading Ltd. Co filed an action for compensation at amount of USD 4.800 thousand together with
accessory against the Company in lllinois State District Court of USA. it is learnt through a notifıed
made to the Company on 21 July 2010. After the subject case is dismissed by the court from
jurisdiction aspect; this time a Iawsuit is re-filed by Tata Steel lnternational (North America) Ltd.) in
Texas State District Court. This case is also dismissed by the court fromjurisdiction aspect.

lt is Iearnt through a notifled made to the Company on 31 October 2012 that Corus international
Trading Ltd. Co. (new trading title: Tata Steel lnternational (North America) Ltd.) filed an action for
compensation nt amount of TRY 8.669 thousand (USD 4.800 thousand) together with accessory
against the Company before Ankara I4th Commercial Court of First lnstance. As a result of
adjudication made; the court adjudged to dismiss the case on procedural grounds because of non
competence and to send the ille to commissioned and competent Karadeniz Ereğli Commercial Coıırt
of First instance in Duty when the judgment becomes definite and in case of request. The case süll
continues on ille no. 20 13/63 in Karadeniz Ereğli 2nd Civil Court of First lnstance. The coufl Ele has
been entrusted to the expert. Date of next hearing of the case is 12 April 2016.
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NOTE 16— PROVISİONS (cont’d)

Provision for termination fce of long term contract

The Company signed flxed rate freight contract on Il August 2008 for the 2008-2022 period with
third parties considering the fact that fıxed-price overseas transportation of iron ore supplies wiih
capesize vesseis shall be more favorable under current market conditions.

The Company has evaluated the extraordinary decrease in freight prices resulted from decrease in iron
ore and oil prices in 2015 and started negotiations with the service provider in the last quarter of 2015
regarding the termination of flxed price Iong-term freight contract, which is in force.

The parties reached an final agreement on 24 February 2016 on termination of the aforementioned
agreement with USD 75.000 thousand fee and signing ofa new freight contract.

The Company has considered the termination cost as constructive obligation since the Management
has taken a decision towards termination process related to the contract as of December 31, 2015 as
weil as an expectation is also formed by the supplier regarding the termination of aforementioned
agreement and cash flows can be estimated in a trustable manner as of December 31, 2015 even if the
termination process 15 concluded with the protocol afler 31 December 2015. Asa result, TRY 203.903
thousand (equivalent to USD 75.000 thousand) provision recognised under other operational
expenses in the financial statements for the ended 31 December 2015 (Note 24).

Provision for state right on mining activities

(lAceording to “Mining Law” numbered 3213 and regulation on “Mining Law
Enforcement”published in the Offlcial Gazette, numbered 25716 on 3 February 2005, the Group is
obliged to pay state right on mining activities based on the sales.
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NOTE 17- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The guarantees received by the Group are as follows:

3 1 December
2015

31 December
2014

1538.130
1538130

1.514.383
1.514.383

The Collaterais. Pledges and Mortgages (CPM) giyen by the Group are as follows:

A. Total CPM iven for the Companys own leeal entity
g• Total CPM giyen in favour of subsidiaries consolidated on line
by-Iine basis
C. Total CPM giyen in favour of other Jrd panies for ordinary
trading operations

D. Other CPM giyen
i. Tom! CPM giyen in favour of parent entity
ii Total CPM giyen in favour of other Group companies out of

the scope of clause 8 and C
Hi. Total CPM giyen in favour of other 3rd parties out of the

scope of clause C

_________________

As of3l December 2015. the ratio ofthe other CPM giyen by the Group to shareholders equity is 0%
(31 December 2014: 0%). Total CPM giyen in favor of subsidiaries consolidated on Iine-by-line basis
amounting to TRY 787.106 tlıousand has been giyen as collateral for financial liabilities explained in
Note 6.

The breakdown of the Group’s cohlaterais giyen regarding service purchases according to their TRY
equavalents of foreign currency is as follows:

US Dollars
TRY
EL RO
iapanese Yen

Letters of guarantees received

3 1 December
2015

105.891

31 December
2014

73.574

787.106 1.155.440

892.997 1.229.014

3 1 December

2015
3 1 December

2014

514.969 771.816
140.257 144,474
206.288 274.778
31.183 37.946

892.997 1.229.014
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NOTE 18- OTRER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As of the balance sheet date, the details of([e Group’s other assets and liabilities are as follows:

Other current assets

Other VAT receivable
Deferred VAT
Prepaid taxes and funds
Other cunent assets

Other current Iiabilities

VAT payable
Other curent liabilitles

Other non-current Iiabiiities

Other non-current Iiabilities

NOTE 19- DEFERRED REVENUE

31 December 31 December

As of the balance sheet dale, the details of the Group’s shon term deferred revenue are as follows:

Advances received
Deferred income

3 1 December 3 1 December

2015 2014

51.684 44.134
33.417 37.035

1.575 1.422
8.809 8.955

95.485 91.546

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

36.003 40.524
4.647 3.589

40.650 44.113

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

442 367
442 367

2015 2014
87.937 73.839
5440 2.619

93.377 76.458
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NOTE2O-EQUITY

As of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the capital structure is as follows:

31 December 31 December
Shareholders

Ataer Holding A.Ş.
Quoted in Stock Exchange

Erdemir’s own shares
Historical capital

Effect of infiation
Restaıed capital
Treasuıy shares

(%) 2015 (%) 2014

49.29 1.724.982 49,29 1.724.982
47,63 1.667.181 47.63 1.667.181

3,08 107.837 3,08 107.837
100,00 3.500.000 100.00 3.500.000

156.613 156.613
3.656.613 3.656.6D
(116.232) (116.232)
3.540.381 3.540.381

The Company is subject to registered capital limit. The board of directors may, at any time it may
think necessary, increase the capital by means of issuing bearer shares each with a nominal value of 1
Kr (one Kurus) up to the amount of the registered capital, which is TRY 7.000.000.000 in accordance
with the requirements as set forth herein.

The issued capital of the Company in 2015 consists of 350.000.000.000 lots of shares (31 December
2014: 350.000.000.000 lots). The nominal value of each share is 1 Kr (Turkish cent) (31 December
2014: 1 Kr). This capital is spiit between A and 13 group shares. Group A shares consist of 1 share
with a share value of 1 Kr and Group B shares consist of 3.499.999.999,99 shares representing TRY
349.999.999.999 of the issued capital.

The Board of Directors consists of 9 members, 3 of which are independent. The number and
qualifıcations of independent members are ascertained in compliance with the CMB’s Communique
numbered [1-17,1 on Corporate Governance Principles.

The General Assembly has to choose one member to the Board of Directors from the nominees of the
Privatization Administration as the beneflciary owner representing A Group shares. in case, the Board
member representing the A Group shares leaves the board within the chosen period, a new board
member is obliged to be chosen from the nominees of the Privatization Administration as the
beneüciary owner. For decisions to be taken about the rights assigned to A Group shares. the board
member representing A Group shares is also obliged to use an afflrmative vote. The decisions to
change the Articles of Association of the Company that wili have an effect on the board of directors’
meeting and decision quorum. rights assigned to A Group shares, rights assigned to A Group shares in
relation to investmenıs and empIoment decisions and any other changes in the Articles of
Association of the Company which wili directly or indirectly affect the rights ofA Group shares. have
to receive an afflrmative vote of the beneticiary owner representing the A Group shares. Otlıerwise.
the decisions are accepted as invalid.
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NOTE 20— EQUITY (cont’d)

Article IV-K of Articles of Association “According to Turkish Commercial Code Article 329,
transaetions of an entity’s own shares” allows Erdemir to purchase, Iıold, seli or transfer its own
shares, without voting rights. As of 31 December 2015. the Company holds its own shares with a
nominal value of TRY 107.837 thousand (31 December 2014: TRY 107.837 thousand). The
Company’s own shares have been reciassifled witlı its inflation adjusted value in the consolidated
balance sheet asa deduction under equity.

31 December 3 1 December
Otherequityitems 2015 2014

Share premium 106.447 106.447
Revaluation reserves 27,215 24.151
-Cashflow hedging reserves 27.215 24.151
Cash Flow Hedging Reserves (2.192) 7.160
Forei currency translation resenes 4.012.449 1.616.002
Actuarkıi (Ioss)/ gam fund (107.795) (125.714)
Restdcted reserves assoned from profıt 950.831 617.355

-Legal resenes 950,831 617.355
Retained eamin 2.527.180 2.616.106

-Evtraordinan’ resenes 781.469 780.894
-Acczunulated profll 987.684 855.200
-Stotutoıy reserves 758.027 980.012

7.514.135 4.861.507

However. in accordance with the communiquĞ numbered 11-14,1 “CommuniquĞ on the Principles of
Financial Reporting In Capital Markets” (“the Communiqu”) on 13 June 2013 which is published on
Offıcial Gazette numbered 28676, “Paid-in capital”, “Restricted proflt reserves” and “Share premium”
should be presented by using their registered amounts in the statutory records. The restatement
differences (e.g. infiation restatement differences) arising from the application of this CommuniquĞ
should be associated with the:

- “Capital restatement differences” account. following the “paid-in capital” line item in the
fınancial statements. if the differences are caused by “paid-in capital” and have not been added to
capital yet;

- “Retained earnings”, if the differences are arising from “restricted profit reserves” and “share
premium” and have not been associated with either profit distribution or capital increase yet.

Other equity items are carried at the amounts that are valued based on the CMB’s Financial Reporting
Standards.

Capital restatement differences may only be considered as pan of the paid-up capital.

Listed companies distribute dividend in accordance with the CommuniquĞ No. [1-19.1 issued by the
CMB which is effective from February 1. 2014.
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NOTE 20— EQUITY (cont’d)

Companies distribute dividends in accordance with their dividend payment policies settled and dividend
payment decision taken in general assembly and also in conformity with relevant legislations. The
communiqu does not constitute a minimum dividend rate for the publicly-held subsidiaries. Companies
distribute dividend in accordance with the method defined in their dividend policy or articles of
incorporation. in addition, dividend can be distributed by fixed or variable installments and advance
dividend can be paid in accordance with profit on interim financial statements of the Company.

in accordance with the Turkish Commerciat Code (TCC), unless the required reserves and the dividend
for shareholders as determined in the articie of association or in the dividend distribution policy of the
company are set aside, no decision may be made to set aside other reserves, to transfer profits to the
subsequent year or to distribute dividends to the holders of usufruct right certificates, to the members of
the board of directors or to the employees; and no dividend can be distributed to these persons uniess the
determined dividend for shareholders is paid in cash.

Infiation adjustments to issued capital and historical amount of exiraordinary reserves can be used as
an internal source of capital increase, dividend distribution in cash or the net off from prior period
losses. In case of usage of infiation adjustment to issued capital in dividend distribution in cash, it is
subject to corporation tax.

Other sources which might be used in dividend distribution, except the net profit for the period, in
statutory books of the Company are equal to TRY 596363 thousand as of 31 December 2015 (31
December 2014: TRY 960.741 thousand).

The legal reserves and the share premium, which is regarded as legal reserve in accordance with TCC
Article 466, are presented using their amounts in statutory records. In this context, the difference of
infiation restatements in accordance with IFRS framework. that are not subject to profit distribution or
capital increase as of the date of financial statements, is associated with the retained earnings.

According to the first paragraph of Article 519 numbered 6102 of the Turkish Commercial Code
C’TCC”). S% of the profit shail be allocated as the first legal reserves, tıp to 20% of the paidl issued
capital. First dividend is appropriated for shareholders afler deducting from the profit. Following the
deduction of the amounts from the “profit”. General Assembly of Shareholders is authorized to decide
whether shall be the remaining balance shall be fully or totally placed in extraordinary legal reserves
or whether it is distributed, also taking into consideration the Company’s profit distribution policy.
According tü the sub-clause 3 of the clause 2 of Article 519 of the Turkish Commercial Code, afler
deducting dividends amounting to 5% of the paiwissued capital from the part decided to be allocated;
ten percent of the remaining balance shall be appropriated to second legal reserves. If it is decided to
distribute the profit as bonus share. through the method of adding the profit to the capitaL second legal
reserves is not appropriated.

According to the CMB Communiqu. until the company’s Article of Association was revised on 31
March 2008, an amount equal to the first dividend distribııted to slıareholders is allocated as slaws
reserves in order tü be used in the p(ant expansion. Also according tü the l3th Article of Association
before the revision on 31 March 2008.5% of the net profit for the period after taxation is estirnated to
be allocated as legal reserves up until reaching 50% of the paidlissued capital. The reserve arnount
that exceeds the 20% of the legal reserves. defined by the Ariicle 519 of TCC, is recorded as staws
reserve. Company’s Shareholders’ General Assembly, which was held at 30 March 2012. decided
status reserves can be used as an internal source of capital increase and profit sharing.
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NOTE 20— EQUITY (cont’d)

Cash flow hedging reserve arises from the recognition of the ehanges in the fair value of derivative
financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows directly in
equity. The amounts deferred in equity are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the
same period, if the hedged item affects profit or Ioss.

Revaluation reserve of property, plant and equipment arises from the revaluation of Iand and
buildings. in the case of a sale or retirement of the revalued property, the related revaluation surplus
remaining in the properties revaluation reserve is tmnsferred directly to the retained earnings.

The amendment in IAS-19 “Employee Benefıts” does not permit the actuariai gala /ioss considered in
the calculation of provision for empioyee termination benefits to be accounted for under the statement
of income. The gains and losses arising from the changes in the actuarial assumption have been
accounted for by “Actuarial (Loss)/Cain Funds” under the equity. The funds for actuarial gainsi
(losses) in the employee termination benefıts is not in a position to be reclassWıed under profit and
Ioss.

As it stated in Note 2.1, foreign currency translation reserve arises from expressing the assets and
Iiabilities of the Groups foreign operations in reporting currency TRY by using exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized under
transiation reserve in equity.

NOTE 21- SALES AND COST OF SALES

Sales Revenue
Domesıic sales
Export sales
Other revenues (*)

Sales returns (-)
Sales discounts (-)

__________________ __________________

()The total amount of by producı exports in other revenues k TRY 23.409 thousand (31 December
2014: TRY 139.685 thousand).

1 Januan - t Januaıy -

Cost of sales (-)

Gross profıt

31 December2ül5 31 December 2014

10.592.118 9.962.783
1. 1 59.922 1.230.427

198.004 308.022
(27.678) (11.158)
(7.785) (5.937)

11.914.581 11.484.137

(9.854.290) (9.045.652)

2.060.291 2.438.485
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NOTE 21— SALES AND COST OF SALES (cont’d)

The breakdown of cost of goods sales for the periods t Januan —31 December 2015 and 1 January —
31 December 2014 is as follows:

1 January - 1 Januaıy -
3, December 2015 3 1 December 2014

Raw material usae (6.894.340) (6.376.176)
Personnel costs (1.212.635) (1.085.243)
Ener’ costs (698.858) (616.695)
Depreciation and amortization expenses (531.742) (409.791)
Factory overheads (290.866) (214.760)
Other cost of goods sold (65.500) (142.572)
Non-operating costs (*) (26. 147) (67.390)
Freieht costs for sales delivered to customers (87.211) (62.594)
lnventory write-downs within the period (Note 9) (39.092) (29.951)
Reversal of inventory wrfte-dowts (Note 9) 12.256 15.013
Other (55.493)(20.155)

(9.854.290) (9.045.652)

(*) Due to the planned! unplanned halt production of plant of the Group’s. operations were suspended
temporarlly in the current period. Asa result of this. unallocated overheads. TRY (26.147) thousand,
has been accounted directly under cost of goods sold (31 December 2014: TRY (67.390) thousand).

NOTE 22 - RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES, MARKETING, SALES AND
DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES, GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The breakdown of operational expenses according to their nature for the periods 1 January — 3 1
December 2015 and 1 January —31 December 2014 is as follows:

1 January - 1 January -
3! December 2015 31 December 2014

Marketing, sales and distribution expenses (-) (131.002) (119.786)
General administrative expenses (-) (284.738) (232.012)
Research and development expenses (-) (9.240) (6.999)

(124.980) (358.797)
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NOTE 23- OPERATING EXPENSES ACCORDING TO THEIR NATURE

The breakdown of operational expenses according to their nature for the periods 1 ianuary — 3 1
December 2015 and 1 January —31 December 2014 is as follows:

Personnel expenses (-)
Depreciation and amonization(-)
Service expenses (-)

Personnel expenses (-)
Depreciation and amortization (-)
Service expenses (-)
Tax. duty and charges (-)
Provision for doubtful receivables (-)

Personnel expenses (-)
Depreciation and amoriization (-)
Other (-)

1 Januaıy -

31 December2ols
1 Januaıy -

31 December 2014

(71.000) (65.053)
(18.690) (14.167)
(41.312) (40.566)

(131.002) (119.786)

The breakdown of general administrative expenses for the periods 1 Januarv —31
1 Ianuary — 31 December 2014 is as follows:

1 Januaıy -
3 1 December 2015

December 2015 and

1 January -
December 201431

(150.128) (135.299)
(10.209) (12.520)

(105.430) (71.756)
(7.237) (3.934)

(11.734) (8.503)

<284.738) (232.012)

The breakdown of research and development expenses for the periods 1 Januaıy —
and 1 January —31 December 2014 is as follows:

31 December20ls

1 Januan - 1 Januarv -
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

(6.322) (4.364)
(801) (144)

(2.117) (2.491)
(9.240) (6.999)
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NOTE 24- OTHER OPERATING İNCOME/(EXPENSES)

The breakdown of other operating income for the periods t January — 31 December 2015 and 1
January — 3 1 December 2014 k as fol Iows:

t January - 1 Januaıy -

31 December2ols 31 December2ol4
Other oneratin2 income

Cam on sale of investmenı property (Note Il) 45.767 -

Interest incorne frorn on credk sales 64.821 59.360
Discount income 16.283 15.479
Provisions released 68.015 23.896
Service income 21.328 18.389
Maintenance repair and rent income 13.676 7.243
Warehouse ncome 4.191 3.085
Indemnity and penalty detention income 2.151 4.079
Insurance indemnity income 13.747 738
Royalty income - 606

989 1.054Gam on sale of mngıble assets
Other income and gains 24.440 14.634

275.408 148.563

Other Onerating expenses 1-)
Provision expenses
Discount expenses
Provision for termination fee of tong term contract (Note 16)
Port facility pre-licence expenses
Lawsuit compensation expenses
Penalty expenses
Service expenses
Rent expenses
Donation expenses
Stock exchange registration expenses
Loss on disposal of tangible assets
Stock exchange reizistration expenses
Impairment of property, plam and equipment (Note 12)
Other expenses and losses

The breakdown of other operating expenses for the periods 1 January — 31 December 2015 and 1
January—31 December 2014 is as follows:

1 Januar>’ - t January -

3 1 December 201 5 3 1 December 2014

(37.131) (41.057)
(22.961) (9.155)

(203.903) -

(7.235) (4.906)
(3.576) (3.765)
(2.764) (3.485)
(3.297) (2.638)
(1.803) (618)
(2.091) (10.213)
(1.018) (910)
(3.659) (4.127)

- (5.588)
(1.980) (18.555)

(28.498) (28.822)
(319.916) (133,839)
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NOTE 25- FINANCE INCOME

The breakdown of fınance income for the periods 1 January — 3 1
December 2014 is as tbllows:

Financial hıcomes

Interest income on baak deposfts
Foreign exchange gains (net)

Fair value differences of derivative financial instruments (net)

NOTE 26- FINANCE EXPENSES

December 2015 and 1 Januaıy — 3 1

1 Januaıy - 1 ianuaıy -
31 December20l5 31 December20l4

86.276 53.675
335.431 163.610

- 12.220
421.707 229.505

The breakdown of finance expenses for the periods 1 January — 31 December 2015
December 2014 is as follows:

Financial expenses (-)

Interest expenses on fınancial Iiabilities
Interest cost of employee benefıts
Foreiım exchance Ioss from deferred tax base

Fair value differences of derivative financial instruments (net)
Other fınancial expenses

and 1 January — 31

(122.551) (184.271)
(32.695) (30.438)

(385.199) (140.617)

(33.369) -

(2.529) (3.020)
(576.343) (358.346)

Dııring the period, the interest expenses of TRY 388 thousand have been capitalized as part of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment (31 December 2014: TRY 3.936 thousand).

NOTE 27 -TAX ASSETS AND LIABLLITIES

Corporate tax pavable:
Current corporate tax provision
Prepaid ıaxes and funds (-)

Taxation:
Current corporate tax expense
Deferred tax income / (expense)

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

1 ianuary -
31 December20l5

1 January -
31 December20l4

472.407 266.045
(254.638) (1 36.337)

217.769 129.708

1 January - 1 January -
3 1 December 2015 31 December 2014

472.407 266.045
(198.549) 38.735

273.858 304.780
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NOTE 27 -TAX ASSETS AND LİABILIUES (cont’d)

Corporate tax

The Group, except its subsidian’ in Romania and Singapore, is subject to Turkish corporate taxes in
force. The necessary provisions are allocated in the consolidated financial statements for the estimated
Iiabilities based on the Group’s results for the year. Turkish ta’c legislation does not permit a parent
company and its subsidiary to file a consolidared tax relurn. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as
reflected in the consolidated financial statements, have been calculated ona sepamte-entity basis.

Corporate tax is applied on taxable corporate income, which is calculated from the statutory
accounting profit by adding non-deductible expenses, and by deducting dividends received from
resident companies, other exempt income and investment incentives utilized.

The effeclive corporate tax rate in Turkey is 20%. 16% in Romania and 17% in Singapore as of3I
December 2015 (3! December 2014: in Turkey 20%. in Romania 16%, in Singapore 17%). The total
amount of the corporate tax paid by the Group in 2015 is TRY 384.346 thousand (31 December 2014:
TRY 181.327 thousand).

in Turkey, advance tax returns are filed on a quarteriy basis. The temporary tax of 2015 has been
calculated over the corporate earnings using the rate 20%, during the temporary taxation period. (31
December 2014: 20%).

Losses can be carried forward to offset the future taxable income for up to maximum 5 years
(Romania: 7 years). However, losses cannot be carried back to offset the profits of the previous
periods, retrospectively.

in Turkey, a definite and distinct reconciliation procedure for tax assessment does not exist.
Cornpanies file their tax returns between 1 Aprit - 25 April following the elosing period of the related
year’s accounts. Tax returns aıd related accounting records may be examined and revised within üye
years.

Income withholdina tax

in addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withhoiding taxes on
dividends distributed. except for the dividends distributed to fuliy üedged taxpayer companies
receiving and deciaring these dividends and to Turkish branches of foreign companies. The rate of
income withholding tax applied to alI companies in the period of 24 Aprii 2003 -22 July 2006 is 10%.
This rate was changed to 15% as of 22 JuIy 2006 by the decision of the Council of Ministers,
numbered 2006/10731. Undistributed dividends incorporated in share capimi are not subject to the
income wirhhoiding taxes.

19.8% withholding tax must be applied to the investment allowances reiating to investrnent incentive
certificates obtained prior to 24 April 2003. investment disbursernents without any investment
incentive cenifıcate after this date which are directly related to production facilities of the company
can be deducted by 40% from the taxable income. The investments without investment incentive
certifıcates do not qualify for tax allowance.

64



(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are cxprcsscd as Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand) unlcss oılıerwisc ındicated.)

NOTE 27 —TAX ASSETS AND LIABILİTIES (cont’d)

Investment allowance angiication

With the decision numbered 2006/95, which was taken during the meeting of the Constitutional Courf
on 15 October 2009, the phrase “oniy related 10 the years 2006, 2007 and 2008 which was a part
of the Temporary Article 69 of the Ineome Tax Law was cancelled and the cancellation became
effective from the date the decision has been published in the Offlcial Gazette on 8 Januaıy 2010.
According to the decision, the investment incentive amount outstanding that cannot be deducted from
2008 taxable income previously, wilI be deducted from taxable income of the subsequent protitable
years.

Regarding the cancellation decision taken by the Constitutional Court, an amendment was made in the
69 article in Income Tax Regulation using the regulation numbered 6009 and dated 23 JuIy 2010.
Consequently, in compliance with the cancellation decision of the Constitutional Coıırt, the year
limitation has been abolished and investment allowance has been limited to 25% of the profit. As
limitation of investment allowance to 25% of the profit by regulation numbered 6009 is found to be
contrary to Iaw by the Constitutional Court, the Constitutional Court cancelled the reguiation and
stayed an execution. Corporate tax ratio of 30% in the previous regulation for the ones who benefıt
from investment allowance has been decreased to the effective corporate tax with the amendment
made (31 December 2014: 20%).

Deferred tax

The Group recognizes deferred tax assets and Iiabilities based upon the temporary differences arising
between its taxable statutory fınancial statements and its financial statements prepared in accordance
with the CMB’s CommuniquĞ on Accounting Standards. These differences usually result in the
recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting periods for the CMB regulations and tax
purposes.

Tax rate used in the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities (excluding Iand) are 20% for the
subsidiaries in Turkey, 17% for the subsidiaıy in Singapore and 16% for the subsidiaıy in Romania (31
December 2014: in Turkey 20%, in Romania 16%, in Singapore 17%). Deferred tax related with the
temporary ditferences arising from Iand parceis is calcıılated with the tax rate of 5% (31 December 2014:
5%).

As the companies in Turkey cannot give a consolidated corporate tax declaration, subsidiaries that
have deferred tax assets are not netted off with subsidiaries that have deferred tax liabilities and
disclosed separateiy.
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NOTE 27 -TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Deferred tax assets:
Carry forxard tax losses
Provisions for employee benefits
Investment incentive
Provision for Iawsuits
Provision for termination fee of long term contract
1 nventories
Provision for other doubtful receivables
Tangible and intangible fıxed assets
Other

Deferred tax liabilities:
Tangible and intangible fıxed assets
Fair values of the derivative financial instruments
Amortized cost adjustment on Ioans
Inventories
Other

in the financial statements which are prepared according to the TAS, of Ereğli Demir ve Çelik
Fabrikaları T.A.Ş. and its afflhiates that are separate taxpayer entities, the net deferred tax assets and
iiabilities of the related companies are ciassifled separateiy within the accounts of deferred tax assets
and liabilities of Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları T.A.Ş. and its subsidiaries’ consolidated flnancial
statemenis. The temporary differences disclosed above besides the deferred tax asset and hiabilities,
have been prepared on the basis of the gross values and show the net deferred tax position.

Presentation of deferred tax assets/(Iiabihities):

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax (Iiabilities)

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

23.807 31.881
(1.048.802) (658.110)
(1.024.995) (626.229)

3 1 December
2015

31 December
2014

2.316 2.056
101.179 97.545

10.532 -

42.183 37.598
43.614 -

7.491 15.601
13.479 12.481
11.227 9.901
29.857 21.606

261.878 196.788

(1.250.788) (788.481)
(9.232) (13.399)
(3.472) (6.199)

(17.625) (10.828)
(5.756) (4.110)

(1.286.873) (823.017)

<1.024.995) (626.229)
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NOTE 27 —TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Maturities of carry forward tax losses are as follows:

1 year
2 year
3 year
4 year
5 year

____________________ ____________________ ____________________ ____________________

Deferred tax asset/( Iiability) movements:

__________________________________________

Opening balance
Deferred tax income
The amount in comprehensive (expense)/income
T ranslation difference
Ciosing balance

____________________________________

Reconciliation of tax provision is as follows:

Reconciliation of tax provision:

Profit before tax 1.436.167 1.965.571

Statutory tax rate 20% 20%

Calculated tax acc. to effective tax rate 287.233 393.114

Reconciliation between the tax provision and calculated tax:
- Non-deductible expenses
- Effect of tax losses unrecognised
deferred tax assets in prior years

- Effect of currency translation to oan taxable assets
- lnvestment incentives

- Eflect of non-taxable adjustments

- Effect of the different tax rates
due to foreiwı subsidiaries

Tax exp. in reponed in the consolidate stat. of income

Cary forward tax losses Deferred tax assets
31 December 2015 31 December 2014 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

14.475 - 14.475 -

- 19.100 - 1.629
- 8.651 - 8.651

14.475 27.751 14.475 10.280

1 January -

31 December2ol5 31
1 Januaıy -

December 2014

(626.229) (409.266)
198.549 (38.735)
(2.170) 10.909

(595.145) (189.137)
(1.024.995) (626.229)

1 January - 1 Januaıy -

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

2.777 4.668

- (92.022)
(7.906) (4.219)

(10.532) -

2.583 3.164

(297) 75

273.858 304.780
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NOTE 27 —TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
in the current period

_____________________________________________________________

Change in revaluation resenes of fL\ed assets
Change in actuarial (Iossgain
Change in cash fiow hedeing resenes
Change in foreign currency translation resenes

_____________________________________________________________

Other comorehensive income/(loss)
in the current period

_____________________________________________________________

Change in revaluation reserves of fted assets
Change in actuarial (Ioss)/gain
Change in cash flow hedging resen’es
Change in foreiwı currency transintion resenes

_____________________________________________________________

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Number of shares outstandin

Proflı for the period aitributable ta equity holders - TRY Ihousand

Profli per share with 1 TRY nominal valuc TRY %

As of 1 January — 31 December 2015 and 2014,
comprehens ive income/(expense) are as follows:

the details of the tax gainsl(Iosses) of the other

1 January—3I December 2015
Amount Tax income! Amount

before tax (expense) after tax
3.064 - 3.061

22.930 (4.586) 1 8.314

(12.078) 2.416 (9.662)
2.462.935 - 2462.935
2.176.851 (2.170) 2.174.681

1 Januar>’—31 December 2011
Amount Tax income/ Amount

before tax (expense) after tax
896 - 896

(75.386) 15.077 (60.309)
20.842 (4.168) 16.674

792.010 - 792.010
738.362 10.909 749.271

NOTE 28- EARNINGS PER SHARE

1 Januan - 1 Januan’

350.000.000.000 350.000.000.000

1.125.913

0.3217/%32.17

1.601.415

0,4575 / %45.75
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NOTE 29 -RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The immediate parenı and ultimate comrolling parent of the Group are Ataer Holding A.Ş. and Ordu
Yardımlaşma Kurumu respectively (Note 1).

The transactions between the Group and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Group, have
been eliminated in the consolidation and therefore are not disclosed in this note.

The details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below:

Due from related oarties (short term) 31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Oyak Renault Otomobil Fab. A.Ş.<21 30.868 27.886
Bolu Çimento Sanayi A.Ş.t1> 6.060 3.887
Adana Çimento Sanayi T.A.Ş. 6.068 4.071
Other 134 565

43.130 36.409

The trade receivables from related parties mainly arise from sales of iron, steel and by-products.

Due to related paies (short teri) 31 December 31 December
2015 2014

Omsan Lojistik A.Ş.W 6.286 3.306
Omsan Denizcilik A.Ş.’» 6.162 4.982
Oyak Pazarlama Hizmet ve Turizm A.Ş.1 8.954 5.361
Oyak Savunma ve Güvenlik Sistemleri A.ş.<ı 3.542 2.876
Other 1.686 1.804

26.630 — 18.329

Trade payables to related parties mainly arise from purchased service transactions.

Subsidiaries of the parent company
(2) Joint venture
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Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are cxprcsscd as TurLish Lira (TRY Thousand’) unlcss otlıcrwise indicated.)

NOTE 29 —RELATED PARTY DİSCLOSURES (cont’d)

Maior sales to related narties t January - t Janua’ -

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Oyak Renault Otomobil Fab. 147.533 128.005
Adana Çimento Sanayi T.A.Ş.1> 20.700 19.262
Bolu Çimento Sanayi A.Ş.0> 18.973 16.929
Aslan Çimento A.Ş.11> 1.209 2.652

Other 3.455 3.662

191.870 170.510

The major sales to related parties are generally due to the sales transactions of iron, steel and by
products.

Maior nurchases from rebted nanfes 1 Januaıy - 1 ianua -

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Omsan Denizcilik AŞ.t1> 66.838 110.185

Oyak Pazarlama Hizmet ve Turizm A.Ş.(1> 61.441 42.422
Omsan Lojistik A.Ş.t1> 41.235 32.243
Oyak Savunma ve Güvenlik Sistemleri A.Ş.<1> 31.701 30.539

Omsan Logistica SRL<’> 8.524 7.758
Other 12.836 7.018

222.575 230.465

The major pıırchases from related parties are generally due to the purchased service transactions.

Subsidiaries of the parent company
(2) Joint venture

The terms and policies applied to the transactions with related parties:

The period end balances are un-secured and their collections wilI be done in cash. As of3 1 December
2015, the Group provides no provision for the receivables from related parties (31 December 2014:
None).

Salaries. bonuses and other benefıts of the key management:

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total compensation consisting of short term beneflts such
as salaries. bonuses and other benefıts of the key management of the Group is TRY 22.083 tlıousand
(31 December 2014: TRY 18.448 thousand).
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EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELiK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounis am expressed as Turkish Li rai TRY Thuusand) unlcss othcnvisc indicaıed.)

NOTE 30 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS

Additional information about fınancial instruments

(a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital through the optimization of the debt and the equity balance that
minimizes the financial risk.

Through the forecasts regularly prepared by the Group, the future capital amount. debt to equity ratio
and similar ratios are forecasted and required precautions are taken 10 strengthen the capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt which includes the financial Iiabilities disclosed in
Note 6, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company,
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in Note 20.

The Croup’s Board of Directors analyze the capital structure in regular meetings. During these
analyses, the Board of Directors also evaluates the risks associated with each class of capital together
with the cost of capital. The Group, by considering the decisions of the Board of Directors, aims to
balance its overali capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy
backs as veIl as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

As of3 1 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 the net debt/equity ratio is as follows:

31 December 3! December
Note 2015 2014

Total tinancial Iiabilities 6 2.975.903 3.413.734
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 4 2.934.703 2.186.810
Net debt 41.200 1.226.924
Total adjusted equity (*) 12.648.179 10.428.861
Total resources 12.689.379 11.655.785

Net debt[fotal adjusted equity ratio 0% 12%
Distribution of net debU total adjusted equity 0/100 11/89

(TotaI adjusted equity 15 calculated by subtracting cash flow hedging resenes and actuarial (Ioss)/gain
fund and adding non-controlling interests.
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EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts ar xprcsed as Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand) unlcss ohenis indicated.)

NOTE 30 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED EROM FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about fınancial instruments (cont’d)

(b) Signifıcant accounting policies

The Croup’s accounting policies related to the financial instruments are disclosed in Note 2
“Summarv of Signiflcant Accounting Policies, 2.8.8 Financial lnstruments”.

(c) Financial risk management objectives

The Group manages fts financial instruments through a separate treasury function which was
established for thıat purpose. The developments are followed on a reah time basis. The Group’s
corporate treasury function manages the financial instruments through daily regular meetings by
evaluating the domestic and international markets and by considering the daily cash inflows and
outflows in accordance with the pohicies and regulations issued by the Group Risk Management Unit.
At the end of each day, each Group company prepares a “daily cash report” and Group Risk
Management Unit calculates daily Value at Risk (VaR) for cash and cash equivaients. The
information included therein is consolidated by the treasury function and used to determine the cash
management strategies. Additionally, the Group’s annual payment schedules are folhowed through the
weekly reports and annual cash management is followed by the monthly reports.

The Group utihizes derivative financial instruments as required and within the terms and conditions
determined by the Group Risk Managemem Unit. Instruments that are highlv liquid and securing a
high-Ievel yield are preferred when determining the fınancial instruments. In that respect. the Group
has a right to claim the accrued interest on time deposits when withdraw before the predetermined
maturity.

(d) Market risk

The Group is exposed primarily to the fınancial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates and interest
rates. The Group utilizes the folhowing fınancial instruments to manage the risks associated with the
foreign exchange rates and interest rates. Also, the Group follows price changes and market
conditions regulariy and takes action in pricing instantaneously.

The Group prefers floating interest rates for long term borrowings. To hedge against the interest risk
the Group uses interest swap contracts for some of its borrowings.

in the current period. there is no signifıcant change in the Group’s exposure to the market risks or the
manner which it manages and measures risk when compared to the previous year.
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(Convenience Translation into Englisb of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(Aınaunts are expresscd as Turkislı Lira (TRY Thousand) unless otherwıse indicated

NOTE 30 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about financial instruments (cont’d)

(t) Foreign currency risk managemeni

As of31 December 2015 and 3! December 2014, stated in Note 2.8.9 the foreign currency position of
the Group in terms oforiginal currency 15 calculated as it as follows:

31 December 2015

TRY TRY EURO Jap Yen
(Total in (Original (Original (Origınal

currnncy) cunenev) cunncy) cunvncy)
1. Trade Receıvablcs 241.540 29.234 66.1%
2a. Monecarv rmancul assets 47460 26.415 6 367 163
2b Non- monetarv rnancial assets - . - -

3.Other 135547 33 830 541 -

3. Currcut assels (1+2+3) 324.547 139.509 13.104 163
3. Trade rnceivables . - - -

6a. Monctary flnancfal assets . - —

6b. Non- monctary financial assets . -

7 Other 55.422 41»46 3.227 133.765
8. Non-eurrentassets (5+6+7) 55.422 31.946 3.227 133.765
9. Total ıısseü (3+8) 479.969 231.355 76.331 133.928
10. Tradc pavables 321.345 281 247 7.776 574931
Il, Financül Iiabılitics 333 717 93 768 34012 1.282.188
12a. hermoneıaryfmanciaIlıabilıties 459280 456.032 752 -

12b. Othcrnon-n’nnetaıy rmancial Iiabılitıcs 211382 211.382
13. Curreutlialilities (10+11+12) 1325.724 1.133.429 42340 1.857.119
Il. Trade pavables . . - -

15. Fınancml Iiabilities 232.421 12.86$ 59.996 1.200.730
16a ühermonctarv tinancıal Iiabilitıes 196217 496 217 - -

16h. Other non-nonelary financial Iiabilitics - -

17. Nou-eurreul lialililtes (13+15+16) 728.638 509.082 59.996 1.200.730
1%. Total linIllitles (13+17) 2.053362 1.652.511 102.536 3.057.849
19. Nctasseülialility jssition ofofl-Imlance slıeet derk,.thc (883.204> (12.224> (274.161>> —

19a. Ofltbalanccsheet forcion curcncy derivative financUl assets 156.598 68,178 27.826
19b. OIT.balance sheet foreign cuırcncy dedvative linancial
liabilities 1.039.802 80.402 301.926 -

20. Netforeign eurrencyasset/IiaIiIity ısition (9.18+19) (2.457.597) (1.433.280) (300305) (2.923.921)
21. Net roreıgn curreney asseti Iialility osilion ofmoneta
ilcım (I—2a—5+ü-10-l l-12n-14-I5-16a) (1.553.980) (1385.350) (29.973) (3.057.686)
22. Fair valuc ofdcdvative Onancul ınstmnnts usul in tbreign
eurrnncv hcdgc 20.969 . 6599
23. I’Iedged foreign curcncy assLts 1.039 802 80402 301.926
24,llcdged fridgn currency Irnbılitics 156598 68,178 27,S26
25,E’oorts 1.183331
26.lnpons 5316966
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(Convenience Translation nto English ofConsolidated Financial Statements Originaliy (ssued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are exprcsscd as Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand) unless oıherwise indicated.)

NOTE 30 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about financial instroments (cont’d)

(0 Foreign currency risk management (cont’d)

31 December 2014
TRY TRY LURO Jap. Yen

(Total in (Original (Original (Original

currency) currency) cunency) currency)

1. Tmde Reccjvables 05778 9.224 30.458 7433
2a. Monetaiy financial assets 382.516 370.877 3.608 6.603
2b. Non- monctary rmancial assets - - -

3,Other 105294 105.193 36 -

4. Current aisets (1+2+3) 593388 495.293 34.103 84.036
5. Trndc occıvables - - - -

6a. Monetan linancial assets - -

6b. Non- rnonctaıy Enancıal assets - - - -

7 Other 36.867 31 316 1956
8. Non-current asse (5+6+7) 36.867 38348 8.956 -

9. Totnl assets (48) 630.455 526.612 36.1>59 84.036
10 Tmde payablcs 254 101 230.220 4(347 533 504
Il. Financial IiabıIıes 555.509 126.430 36.904 1.103 596
12a. Other monetaiy fi,tancial Itabiliijes 633.869 632.979 3)6
12b, Othcrnon-nnetary fnancial Iiabilitics 127.120 127 820 -

13. Current lialillIjes (10+11+12) (.570.599 1.416.750 41.267 1.737.111<>
84. Tmde payables . . . -

85. Financial Iiahilaies 399,791 166.194 66.750 2.183,187
16a. Othermonetaıy Onancial Iiabilities 483 582 183.582
16b. Othernon-nx,netaıy inancial Iiabilities - -

87. Non-current Ijalilitles (14+15+16) 883373 649.776 66.750 2.183.187
l8TotaI Ilulililles (13+17) 2.453.972 2.1166.525 108.017 3.92(1.287
19. Net ussct/IiaNlitv j,,sition ofoIT-lIance sheet derişuti’c
finnucial iustrumeuü (I9a-19h) (578.049) (335.054) (86.147) -

19a. OtT-halancc shcet freign cunency dedyative inancialassets 326.688 208.885 41.739
19b OtT-balance shcet foreign curency derivatıve tinancial
liabıl’ıties 904.667 543 939 127886 -

20NetforeigncurrcncvnseUIiaNlitvsiIion (9-18+19) (2.401566) (h674338) (158.104) (3.9<16.251)
21. Net Ibreign currencvasset/ liaNlit, lJiıion ofmouclarv
itenıs (l—2ır5”Ga-lO-I l-12a-l4-l5—86a) (1.838558) (8.549305) (73.950) (3.906.251)
22, Fair aIue of derivative tinancial instrunrnts used in foreign
currencyhedge 66168 ism 16808 -

23. I’Iedged foreign currencv assets 904667 513939 127.886
21 Hedged ‘orcitıncurrenev Iıahilities 326688 208.885 18,739 -

25. L’şons 1.379.112
26. Impons 5301.711
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See
Nde 34)

EREĞLi DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRiKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Turkısh Lira (TRY Thousand) unless otherwise ındicated.)

NOTE 30 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about financial instruments (cont’d)

(t) Foreign curreney risk management (cont’d)

The following table shows the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% (+1-) change in the TRY, USD, EURO
and Japanese Yen. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

31 December2ol5

1- TRY net asset’liability
2- Hedged ponion from TRY rk (-)
3- EWect of capitalization (-)
4- TRY net eWect (1+2+3)
5- US Dollars net assetlliability
6- Hedged portion from VS Dollars risk (-)
7- Eftect of capitalization (-)
8- US Dollars net effect (5+6+7)

9- Euro net assetlliability

10- Hedged portion ftom Euro risk (-)
Il- EfTect of capitalization (-)
12- Euro net effect (9+10+11)

13- Jap. Yen net assevlizbility
14- Hedged ponion from Jap. Yen risk (-)
15- EfTect of capitalizalion (-)
16— Jap. Yen net eftect (13+14+15)

TOTAL (4+8+12+16)

Proflt’(Ioss) after capitalization on tangible
assets and before tax and non-controlling interest

Appreciation of Depreciation of
foreign currency foreign currency

(132.106) 142.106
6.818 (6.818)

(135.288) 135.288

(8.327) 8.327
8.842 (8.842)

515 (515)

(7.040) 7.040

(7.040) 7.040

(I41.8I3) 141.813

in addition to ilie Group’s foreign currency sensitivity to a 10% (+1-) change in TRY, TRY 154.606
thousand of income / (TRY (62.935) thousand expense) wiil occur due to the decrease! (increase) in
deferred tax base. (31 December 2014: TRY 166.866 thousand incorne / TRY (56.859 thousand
expense).

As of3l December 2015 asset and Iiability balances are translated by using
rates: TRY 2,9076 = US $ I,TRY 3,1776 = EUR t and TRY 0,0241= JPY
TRY 2,3 189 = US 5 I,TRY 2.8207 = EUR 1 and TRY 0,0 193= JPY 1)

ilie following exchange
1(31 December 2014:
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(Convenience Translation ince English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FORTHEYEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER2OI5

(Amouncs are cxprcsscd asTurkish Lira (TRY Thousand) unless otlıer”ıse indicated.)

NOTE 30 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about financial instruments (cont’d)

(0 Foreign currency risk management (cont’d)

31 December 2014

1- TRY net asset/Iiabihty

2- Hedged portion from TRY risk (-)
3- Effect of capitalization (-)
4- TRY net effect (1+2+3)

5- VS Dollars net asseUliability

6- Hedged portion from VS Dollars risk (-)
7- Effect of capitalization (-)
8- US Dollars net effect (5+6+7)

9- Euro net asset/liability
10- Hedged portion [yem Euro risk (-)
Il- Effect of capiralization (-)
12- Euro net effect (9—10+11)

13- Jap. Yen net asset/liability

14- Hedged portion Umm lap. Yen risk (-)
15- Effect of capitalization (-)
16- Jap. Yen net effect (13+14+15)

TOTAL (4+8+12+16)

(g) Interest rate risk management

Profıt’(loss) afıer capitalization on tangible
assets and before tax and non-controlling interesı

Appreciation of Depreciation of
foreign currency foreign cunency

(153.988) 153.988

20.889 (20.889)

(133.099) 133.099

64 (64)

64 (64)

(20.297) 20.297
11.773 (11.773)

(8.524) 8.524

(8.108) 8.108

(8.108) 8.108

(149.667) 149.667

The majority of the Group’s borrowings are based on floating interest rate terms. in order to manage
the exposure to interest rate movements on certain portion of the bank borrowings, the Group uses
interest rate swaps and changes floating rates to flxed rates.

in addition. through the use ofdeposits in which the Group has a right to claim the accrued interest
when withdrawn before the predetermined maturity. the Group minimizes the interest rate risk by
increasing the share of floating rate denominated assets in its consolidated the balance slıeet.

Funhermore. for borrowingş denominated in foreign currencies, except for US Dollars, the Group
minimizes its interest rate risk by leveraging in foreign currencies that bear iower interest rate. in
addition, a higher interest rate is applied to the trade receivables with a maturity when compared to
the interest rate exposed for trade payables.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Siatements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

ERELİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJI DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Turkish Lira t’TRY Thousand”) unless otherwise indicaled.)

NOTE 30 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL

INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional informalion about fınancial instrnmeuts (cont’d)

(g) Interest rate risk management (cont’d)

fntera rate sensi!ivitv

The following sensitivity anaiysis is based on forecasted interest rate ehanges for the liabilities

denominated in variable interest rates. The information details the Group’s sensitivity to an
jncrease/decrease of 0,50% for (35 Dollars and EURO, 0,25% for Jap.Yen and 1,00% for TRY
denominated interest rates.

Since the principal payments of the loans with floating interest rates are not affected from changes in

interest rates. the risk exposure of the Group leans is measured using a sensitivity anaiysis instead ofa

Value at Risk calculation.

Interest position table
3 1 December 3 1 December

2015 2014

Floatiug interest mte financial instnıments

Financial liabilitles 2.643.675 2.567.340

For the year round. if the US Dollars, EURO and Jap. Yen denominated interest rates

increase/decrease by 100 base points in TRY. 50 base points in US Dollars and LURO and 25 base

points in Jap.Yen respectively ceteris paribus, the profıt before taxation and non-controlling interest

after considering the effect of capitalization and hedging would be lower/higher TRY 4.088 thousand.

(h) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for Iiquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, wlıich has

built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short.

medium and Iong-term funding and Iiquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity

risk by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash llows and ınatching the maturity profıles

of fınancial assets and liabilities and maintaining adequate funds and reserves.

Lipuic/iıv risk tahks

Conservative liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufflcient cash. availability of suffıcient

amount of borrowings and funds and ability to senle market positions.

The Group manages its funding of actual and forecasted financial obligations by maintaining the
availability of sufflcient number of high quality ban providers.

The fol]owing taNe details the Group’s expected maturity for its derivative and non derivative

fınancial biabilities. Interests which viIl be paid on borrowings in the future are included in the

relevant columns in the following table.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Nnancial Statements Originally Issued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDİARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expresscd as TurLish Lira (‘TRY Thousand”) unlcss otherwise indicalcd.)

NOTE 31 - FİNANCİAL İNSTRUMENTS (FAİR VALUE AND FINANCİAL RİSK
MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES) (cont’d)

Additional information about financial instrumcnts (cont’d)

Categories of the flnancial instruments and their fair values (cont’d)

Fair vaine k the price Ihat wonid be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a Iiability in an orderiy
transaction between market participants al the measurement dale.

Esiimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group by using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgement is necessarily
required to interpret market dala. Accordingly. estimates presented herein are not necessariiy
indicative of the amounts the Group could realise in a current market exchange.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair values of financial instruments:

Financial asseis
Financial assets that are carried at cost value including cash and cash equivalents are assumed 10
reflect their fair values due to their short İerm nature.

The carrying value of receivables. with related impairments are assumed to rellect their fair values.

Financial liabiliıies
Fair values of short term borrowings and trade payables are assumed lo approximate their carrying
values due to their short term nature.

Fair values of long term fınancial liabilities are assumed to approximate their carrying values due to
mostiy they have floating interesı mtes and repricing at short term.

flnancial asset and Iiahilities at kir value Fair value level as of reponin dale
3 1 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Finanejal assets and Iiabilities nt kir
value thmugh pmfıt/Ioss
Derivative financial assets 63.744 - 63.744
Derivative Frnancial liabilities (14.100) - (14.100)

Financial asseis and Iiabilities nt fair value

through other comprehensive
income/expense

Derivative fınancial assets 23.265 - 23.265
Derivative tinancial Iiabihties (26.750) - (26.750)

Tolal 46.159 - 46.159

83



(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Turkish — Sea
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are exprcssed as Turkish Lira (‘TRY Thousand’) unlcss otbcrwise indicated.)

NOTE 31 - FİNANCİAL INSTRUMENTS (FAİR VALUE AND FINANCİAL RİSK
MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES) (cont’d)

Additional information about fınancial instruments (cont’d)

Financial asset and Iiabilities at fairvaluc Fafr valuc LveI as ofreporting date
3! December 2014 Level 1 Level2 Level 3

Fınancial assets and liabilitias nt (air
valuc thmuglı pmfWloss

Derkative lhrnncial assets 70,5 72 - 70.572 -

Derivative lanciaI Ibbilities (16.995> - (16.995) -

Financial assets and Iiabilities at fair
valuc thmugh othercompıthensive
incomc/expcnse

ft’rivatht fmancblasseıs 21.710 - 21.740 -

Derivate tfrıancbl Iiabdits (12.940) - (12.940) -

TomI 62.377 - 62.377 -

First Level: Qııoted (non adjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or Iiabiliıies.

Second Level: Other valuation techniques for which ali inputs which have a significarn etlect on the
recorded fair value are observable. either directly or indirectly.

Third Level: Valuation techniques which use inputs which hava a significant effect on the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable market data.

NOTE 32— SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

A letter of intent was signed for a 50:50 partnership with the German technology company The Linde
Group in order to establish a new air separation unit in Iskenderun that wilI supply the additional
industrial gases required for our subsidiary İsdemir’s production and to reduce the costs with an
efTective and efficient management. With this new unit to start its operations in Iess than 20 months
thanks tü this agreement. which is the first international joint venture of Erdemir Group in its 50-years
of history, lsdemirs oxygen production capacity and nitrogen production capacity wilI inerease by
14% and 45%. respectively.
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Nde 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are exprcssed as Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand’) unless otbcrwisc indicated.)

NOTE 33- ADDITİONAL INFORMATİON FOR CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Details of ehanges in working capital for the periods between 1 January — 31 December 2015 and 1
January —31 December 2014 are as follows:

Curent trade receivables

Inventories

Other short tent receivables / curent assets

Other long term receivables / non current assets

Current trade payables

Other short term payables / Iiabilities

Other long term payables / Ifabilities

3 1 December 2015 3 1 December 2014
570.000 102.712

829.687 412.375

17.518 (58)
46.164 28.129

58.614 (130.540)

(78.333) 30.885

(8.554) 10.472
1.435.096 453.975

NOTE 34 - OTHER ISSUES AFFECTING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS MATERIALLY OR THOSE REQUIRED TO BE DISCLOSED FOR A
CLEAR, UNDERSTANDABLE AND INTERPRETABLE PRESENTATİON

Convenicnce translation to English:

As al December 31, 2015, the accounting principles described in Note 2 (defined as Turkish
Accounting StandardsİTurkish Financial Reporting Standards) to the accompanying financial
statements differ from international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS”) issued by the
international Accounting Standards Board with respect to the application of infiation accounting,
certain reciassifications and also for certain disclosures requirement of the POA/CMB. Accordingly,
the accompanying fınancial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations in aceordance with IFRS.

1 Januaıy- 1 Janunıy
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